
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              December 15, 2020 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

December 15, 2020 - 8:30 AM 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT  (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Significant exposure to potential litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) 
of Government Code §54956.9. Number of potential cases: one case.  

  
 

  3. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT – Pursuant to Government Code §54957 – Title: 
Environmental Health Director. 

  
 

  4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County 
Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association 
(ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; 
Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: 
all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, 
Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, Deputy Personnel Director Sue 
Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health and Human Services Director 
Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. 
Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to 
gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-waving feature" 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              December 15, 2020 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  9. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 10. Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA - Request Board find that, consistent with 
the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for the 
requested positions exists as certified by the Agricultural Commissioner and 
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal 
candidates may meet the qualifications for the positions and the vacancies could 
possibly be filled through internal recruitment, an open recruitment would be more 
appropriate; and C) approve the hiring of two (2) seasonal Field Assistants 01, 
Range 050PT ($15.97 - $19.39 per hour), from April 1, 2020 through September 29, 
2020, contingent upon the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget. 

  
 

 11. Agricultural Commissioner - OVMAP - Request Board find that, consistent with the 
adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for the 
requested positions exists as certified by the Agricultural Commissioner and 
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal 
candidates may meet the qualifications for the positions and the vacancies could 
possibly be filled through internal recruitment, an open recruitment would be more 
appropriate; and C) approve the hiring of three (3) seasonal Field Assistants 01, 
Range 050PT ($15.97 to $19.39 per hour), from April 1, 2021 through September 29, 
2021, contingent upon the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget. 

  
 

 12. Public Works - Road Department - Request Board find that, consistent with the 
adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) 
Office Technician I/II/III exists in the Road Department budget, as certified by the 
Public Works Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-
Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, 
the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve 
the hiring of one (1) Office Technician I at Range 55 ($3,343 - $4,065), Office 
Technician II at Range 59 ($3,669 - $4,458) or Office Technician III at Range 63 
($4,023 - $4,895), depending on qualifications. 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              December 15, 2020 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 13. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board: A) 
declare ConFab Manufacturing of Galt, CA the successful bidder for two 50-yard roll 
off Bins; and B) authorize the purchase of two 50-yard roll off bins from ConFab 
Manufacturing of Galt, CA in an amount not to exceed $15,553.63. 

  
 

 14. Public Works - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2020-47 titled, "A Resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the 
Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing Project," 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 15. Sheriff - Request Board approve and award the contract for Inmate Communication 
System to Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC of Antonio, TX as the successful bidder, in 
an amount not to exceed $0.00 for the period of December 15, 2020 through 
December 15, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 16. County Administrator - Advertising County Resources - Request Board receive 
the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Mid-Year Report from Inyo County Film Commissioner 
Chris Langley. 

  
 

 17. County Administrator - Economic Development - Request Board: A) adopt the 
Inyo County Resiliency Grant Program for nonprofit organizations as proposed or 
amended, using $100,000 of General Fund money appropriated by your Board for 
the 2020-21 Fiscal Year; and B) authorize the County Administrator to approve and 
enter into grant program contracts in accordance with the program guidelines, in a 
form approved by county counsel. 

  
 

 18. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board 
approve the following operational changes at the Independence and Lone Pine 
landfills: 
 
A)  Add two, 40-yard bins at the Independence landfill for household trash, maintain 
the same operating days, and change the landfill public hours to 7:30 a.m. to 3:30 
p.m. on both days; 
 
B)  Change the Lone Pine landfill hours to be open Thursday through Monday from 
7:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., adding Thursday and Sunday to the current operating 
schedule; 
 
C)  Find that (1) the proposed changes at the two landfills have already been 
addressed under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in two mitigated 
negative declarations (MNDs); (2) no subsequent or supplemental environmental 
review or further documentation is required pursuant to PRC 21166 and 14 CCR 
15162  because:  (a) the proposed changes do not involve new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of any previously 
identified significant effects, (b) no substantial changes are proposed to the project. 
(c); the proposed changes in daily operations are permitted in the existing SWFPs 
for the two landfills, (d) no substantial changes in circumstances under which the 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              December 15, 2020 

project is being undertaken have occurred, and (e) no new information that was not 
known at the time of the preparation of the previous MNDs documentation has 
become available; 
 
D) Find that the proposed operational changes are exempt under 14 CCR section 
15061 (the “common sense exemption”) for the reasons presented above, because it 
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that these minor operational 
changes will have a significant effect on the environment. Also find that the 
operational changes are exempt under 14 CCR section 15301 (the “existing facilities 
exemption”), because they  provide for the continued operation of the two existing 
landfills which involves negligible or no expansion of the existing use of the facilities. 
Additionally, there are no unusual circumstances or other exceptions under CEQA 
that would invalidate the existing facilities exemption for the two landfills; and 
 
E) Direct staff to file a notice of exemption. 

  
 

 19. Health & Human Services - Request Board ratify and approve the payment of two 
invoices, one being from a prior fiscal year, that total $15,015.86 to Southern Inyo 
Hospital for outpatient medical services for Inyo County inmates. 

  
 

 20. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board ratify and approve 
the agreement between the County of Inyo and the 18th District Agricultural 
Association (Tri-County Fairgrounds) for the provision of indoor rental space to 
conduct Verily COVID-19 testing services, in an amount not to exceed $500 per day, 
$26,000 total for the period of December 1, 2020, through March 31, 2021, and 
authorize the HHS Director to sign. 

  
 

 21. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of December 1, 2020. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

 22. 10:30 A.M. - Public Works - Request Board: A) waive further reading of the 
proposed ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Amending and Repealing Certain Sections of Title 11 of the 
Inyo County Code Related to Change Orders in Public Works Contracts;" and B) 
schedule enactment for 10:30 a.m. January 5, 2021 in the Board of Supervisors 
Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence. 

  
 

 23. 10:30 A.M. - County Administrator/Sheriff - Request Board enact a proposed 
ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, 
State of California, Amending Section 2.30.050 of the Inyo County Code, Pertaining 
to the Qualifications, Appointment, and Compensation of the Veterans Service 
Officer." 

  
 

 24. 11:30 A.M. - BOARD OF EQUALIZATION - The Board of Supervisors will recess 
and reconvene as the Inyo County Board of Equalization (separate agenda). 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  25. PUBLIC COMMENT 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       5                                                                                                              December 15, 2020 

  
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  
 

 
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

 



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Request Approval to Recruit Two Seasonal Field Assistants for the ESWMA 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for the requested positions exists as certified by the Agricultural Commissioner and concurred with by the 
County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the 
positions and the vacancies could possibly be filled through internal recruitment, an open recruitment would be 
more appropriate; and C) approve the hiring of two (2) seasonal Field Assistants 01, Range 050PT ($15.97 - 
$19.39 per hour), from April 1, 2020 through September 29, 2020, contingent upon the adoption of the Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022 Budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area (ESWMA) division of the Agriculture Department hires seasonal 
Field Assistants annually during the active growing season to assist with noxious weed abatement activities 
including site monitoring, surveillance, and treatments. ESWMA is funded through grants and agreements. 
Seasonal staff is required to fulfill the terms of these various funding sources.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The ESWMA has hired seasonal Field Assistants annually during the active growing season for many years to 
assist with noxious weed abatement activities including site monitoring, surveillance, and treatments when the 
work predictably exceeds the capacity of the full-time staff. 

The ESWMA has historically been funded primarily through grants and agreements with other agencies.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the personnel action outlined in the Departmental Recommendation. This 
alternative would limit the scope of noxious weed abatement treatments, allowing for an increase in noxious 
weed populations in Inyo and Mono Counties, and potentially preclude this program from fulfilling commitments 
to current grant funding requirements and contracted work for other agencies.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Wildlife Conservation Board and the California Department of Food and Agriculture provide grant funding to 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

support this program.  Various other smaller agreements with local and state agencies provide additional funds.
 
FINANCING:
Sufficient funds are available for these positions from April 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021 in the ESWMA fiscal 
year 2020-2021 budget (unit 621300, object code 5012, Part Time Employees) previously approved by the 
Board. Funding for these positions from July 1, 2021 through September 29, 2021 will be included in the 
department requested budget for the fiscal year 2020-2021, but is contingent upon Board approval of that 
budget. The ESWMA is a non-general fund program.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 11/24/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 11/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/25/2020
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 12/1/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/1/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/2/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/2/2020
Nathan Reade Final Approval - 12/3/2020



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - OVMAP
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Request Approval to Recruit Three Seasonal Field Assistants for the OVMAP  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for the requested positions exists as certified by the Agricultural Commissioner and concurred with by the 
County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the 
positions and the vacancies could possibly be filled through internal recruitment, an open recruitment would be 
more appropriate; and C) approve the hiring of three (3) seasonal Field Assistants 01, Range 050PT ($15.97 to 
$19.39 per hour), from April 1, 2021 through September 29, 2021, contingent upon the adoption of the Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022 Budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program (OVMAP) hires seasonal Field Assistants annually during the 
warm season to assist with mosquito abatement activities including source monitoring, surveillance, and 
treatments. Seasonal employees are required to augment staff, ensuring comprehensive control of mosquitoes 
throughout the OVMAP boundaries and within the Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District (MLMAD) with 
whom OVMAP provides service as a contractor.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The OVMAP hires seasonal Field Assistants annually during the warm season when mosquito abatement 
activities predictably exceed the capacity of the full-time staff. Required activities include source monitoring, 
surveillance, and pesticide treatments. 

OVMAP has provided service to MLMAD for many years and would not be able to fulfill contract terms for service 
without seasonal staffing.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the personnel action outlined in the Departmental Recommendation. This 
alternative would limit the scope of mosquito abatement treatments performed and potentially affect the health 
and comfort of the public through increased risk of mosquito-borne disease transmission and nuisance mosquito 
conditions.  It would also inhibit the ability of OVMAP to meet contract requirements with MLMAD.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District (MLMAD)
 
FINANCING:
Sufficient funds are available for these positions from April 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021 in the OVMAP fiscal 
year 2020-2021 budget (unit 154101, object code 5012, Part Time Employees) previously approved by the 
Board. Funding for these positions from July 1, 2021 through September 29, 2021 will be included in the 
department requested budget for the fiscal year 2021-2022, but is contingent upon Board approval of that 
budget. The OVMAP is a non-general fund program. There will be no fiscal impact to the Inyo County General 
Fund.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 11/24/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 11/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/24/2020
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 11/25/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/8/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/9/2020
Nathan Reade Final Approval - 12/9/2020



County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Breanne Nelums 
 
SUBJECT:  Request your Board authorize the hiring of One (1) Office Technician I/II/III for the Road Department. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Office Technician I/II/III exists in the Road Department budget, as certified by the Public 
Works Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal 
candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal 
recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the 
hiring of one (1) Office Technician I at Range 55 ($3,343 - $4,065), Office Technician II at Range 59 ($3,669 - 
$4,458) or Office Technician III at Range 63 ($4,023 - $4,895), depending on qualifications.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Public Works Department would like to hire one (1) Office Technician I/II/III. This position is critical to the 
department operations and processes our payables and bid items for the Road Department.  This position is 
100% funded in non-general fund budgets and is part of our authorized strength in the FY 2020/2021 budget.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the hiring of one (1) Office Technician I/II/III. This is not recommended 
as it will have direct impacts on service delivery to the community and countywide departments.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel
Auditor Controller
 
FINANCING:
This position will be paid for out of the Road Department budget 034600, salaries and benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Breanne Nelums Created/Initiated - 12/8/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/8/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/8/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 12/8/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/8/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/8/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/8/2020



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Award bid for the purchase of two Recycling Waste Management roll off bins. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare ConFab Manufacturing of Galt, CA the successful bidder for two 50-yard roll off Bins; 
and B) authorize the purchase of two 50-yard roll off bins from ConFab Manufacturing of Galt, CA in an amount 
not to exceed $15,553.63.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Recycling Waste Management utilized the formal bid process for the purchase of two 50-yard roll off bins.  
ConFab Manufacturing submitted the lowest bid at $15,553.63.  One other bid was submitted by Stockton Tri 
Industries in the amount of $16,438.88.

These roll-off bins will allow Inyo County Recycling and Waste Management to place household trash and green 
waste in two bins at the Independence Landfill to help us meet our tonnage limits.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose not to award this bid to the low bidder, however this is not recommended due to the 
need for additional roll off bins for the efficiency of the Solid Waste Department.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
There are sufficient funds in the Recycling Waste Management budget 045700, object code 5650, because of 
savings from purchasing a used Loader instead of a brand new Loader in October of this year.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 11/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/24/2020
Leslie Chapman Approved - 12/9/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/9/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/9/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/9/2020



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Jacob Trauscht 
 
SUBJECT:  Recording a Notice of Completion for the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2020-47 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Inyo County Jail Roof 
Sealing Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Pacific Polymers, Inc dba American Foam Experts of Herald, CA completed the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing 
Project on November 23rd, 2020. On December 9, 2020 the Sealant manufacturer (General Coatings) completed 
their inspection per the Specifications.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Pacific Polymers, Inc dba American Foam Experts of Herald, CA completed the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing 
Project on November 23rd, 2020. On December 9, 2020 the Sealant manufacturer (General Coatings) completed 
their inspection per the Specifications.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to file the Notice of Completion, however this is not recommended as we could not 
pay the contractor the 5% retention.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
This will be paid from Public Works Deferred Maintenance, 011501 object code 5191 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Jail Roof Sealing Project - Notice of Completion and Resolution
 
APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht Created/Initiated - 12/7/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2020



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Jacob Trauscht Approved - 12/8/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/8/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/8/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/8/2020



RESOLUTION #2020 -

“A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

FOR THE
INYO COUNTY ROOF SEALING PROJECT”

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing Project has been completed by Pacific Polymers Inc. dba 
American Foam Experts in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the 
Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing Project.

Passed, approved and adopted this             day of                          , 2020 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clint Quilter, Clerk of the Board

by 
Assistant Clerk of the Board 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

Inyo County Public Works Department
P. O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93515

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. A work of improvement known as the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing Project  on the property hereinafter 
described was completed on      December 9, 2020       and was accepted by the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo on     December 15, 2020    .

2. The property on which the Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing Project  has been completed and is located on 550 
South Clay Street, in Independence, CA.

3. The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 North 
Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, owns and maintains the Inyo County Jail.

4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted                                        , by the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Inyo to execute and file this Notice of Completion.

5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the Inyo County Roof Sealing Project, pursuant to 
contract with the County, is Pacific Polymers Inc. dba American Foam Experts.

Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions 
which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract.

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated: By: 
Michael Errante, Director of Public Works



VERIFICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)  SS.

COUNTY OF INYO )

I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the  Inyo County Jail Roof Sealing 
Project, and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the property therein 
described; that I am authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the entity’s 
behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public entity; 
and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof.  I declare under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and the information set forth 
therein are true and correct.

Dated: ____________________________________
Michael Errante



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Jared Sparks 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract for Inmate Communication System 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and award the contract for Inmate Communication System to Inmate Calling Solutions, 
LLC of Antonio, TX as the successful bidder, in an amount not to exceed $0.00 for the period of December 15, 
2020 through December 15, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Currently we have an inmate phone system at the jail with a company named Securus (working on an 
expired/month-to-month contract now). The phones are pay for use by the inmates where we/commissary 
(money/profits only go back to programs and things that benefits the inmates) receive a commission of the 
proceeds. This is an industry standard that nearly all jails have inmate phones that are managed by an outside 
party for commissions.

We have been with this company for nearly 20 years. All they provide is phone services. Their rates are 
extremely high for the inmates and their families. The commission return for the County is very low. All they 
provide is wired phones in each jail pod/housing area.

The Sheriff's Department sent out a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a new Inmate Communication System for the 
jail. The detailed RPD was sent out on 04/21/20 with a mandatory site visit that occurred 05/11/20 where only 
Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC and Combined Public Communications, LLC attended. We received proposals 
from both Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC and Combined Public Communications, LLC by the deadline of 
06/30/20.

After a detailed review of the proposals, and numerous questions back/forth between the two vendors, Inmate 
Calling Solutions, LLC was selected as the successful candidate. Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC was selected 
due to their experience, references, scope of services they were willing to provide and fair rates they were willing 
to provide for all parties involved.

With the approval of this contract with Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC, the Jail will receive a new inmate phone 
system that includes:

-Touch screen phones in the housing units where inmates can not only call, but can also do video visitation, 
order commissary, view the inmate rules, file grievances, etc.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

-Two kiosks, one in the jail lobby and one in the booking area that accept currency and add to inmates books.

-Tablets for the inmate use that support video visitation, email, filing of grievances, request medical services, 
educational apps, etc.

-Even with all the extra included services, inmates will be paying much less to use the phones then they do now 
and the commissary will see increased returns on the commissions.

With all these things being at no-cost to the County, I feel the contact should be awarded/signed to Inmate 
Calling Solutions, LLC.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could reject the contract and go back to bid however this option is not recommended since there were 
two qualified companies that submitted their proposals timely. Also, the adoption of this contract would greatly 
reduce the cost for inmates and their families to communicate with while incarcerated.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditors Office
Personnel
Risk Manager
 
FINANCING:
This contract involves no costs to the County. The vendor provides, installs, services and provides the network 
for all equipment for no charge. The vendor receives their revenue from calls/services the inmates/families use. 
The County receives a small flat rate commission that goes directly into the inmate welfare account which only 
benefits inmates. The Inmate Welfare Fund account is reported annually to the Board of Supervisors.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Jared Sparks Created/Initiated - 11/30/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/30/2020
Jared Sparks Approved - 12/1/2020
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 12/2/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/7/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/10/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 12/10/2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnmate Callino Solutions. LLC. d/bla lCSolutions ("lCS")

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnmate Communication SERVtCES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, rcs of San Antonio. TX
(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor") may have the need for Sheriffs Office
services of the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County''), and in consideration of the mutual
promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The County shall furnish to the Contractor, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein Requests by the Contractor to the
County to perform under this Agreement will be made by Vince Laurita , whose tile
is:Reqional Account Manaqer

Services and work provided by the County at the Contractofs request under this Agreement will be
performed by County employees or other County contractors in a manner consistent with the requirements
and standards established by applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulaiions, and
resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited t6, those which
are referred to in this Agreement.

When Contractor requests County to perform work or services under this Agreement, County may in
its discretion have such work or seryices performed either by its own employees, or by one or more of its
contractors. County will have such work or services performed by employees or iontractors who are
qualified to, and capable of, doing such work. County has the right in its sole discretion to determine which
employee(s) or contracto(s) are qualified and capable, and to determine which employee(s) or contractor(s)
of those which are deemed qualified and capable, are to actually perform the work and services under this
Agreement. Contractor has no right to designate, or require the work or services to be performed by, a
particular-County Department, class of County employees, particular employee(s), or a particular contraitor.
Further, County need not obtain Contractor's approval prior to or after incuning iriy travet and/or per diem, or
overtime expenses in performing work or services under this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

from 1211512Q20 to 1211512A23

3. CONSIDERATION.

A Count Emnlgv-ee(s). Where work and services are performed by County employee(s)
under this Agreement, the consideration to be paid by Contractor to County for such services dnd wbrhis thd
sum total of the (1) hourly rate costs (including overtime, if any), (2)fringe benefits cost, and (3) overhead
and administrative costs (including travel and per diem, if any), for each employee who performed any work
or services under this Agreement.

(1) Hpurly Rate Costs. The product of the number of hours (rounded up or down to the
nearest 1110 (0.10) of an hour) which a County employee worked under this agreement,
multiplied by lhe employee's hourly rate of pay as set by the most recent County salary
ordinance or employee contract. Where the circumstances of the services and work
requested by Contractor under this Agreement requires the County employee to work in

Coung of lnyo Contract - No. 130
(County Services)

Page 1 of8
a7l2a2a1S



excess of eight (8) hours per day or forty (40) hours per week (hereinafter referred to as
"overtime"), and County is obligated by law or contract to compensate the employee for such
overtime at a rate of one and one half (1%) times their hourly rate of pay, the hourly rate of
pay for such overtime hours worked under this Agreement will be one and one hall (1%)
times the employee's hourly rate of pay as set by the most recent County salary ordinance
or employee contract.

\?l lrinqg Benefit Costs. The product of the hourly rate costs muttiptied by 35% (0.3S).
(gl _ Overhead and Adrninistrative Costq. The product of the hourly iate costs muitipliea
by 2QY" (0.20), plus special, travel and per diem costs if any. where a county employee
travels andlor incurs per diem expenses in performing work under this Agreement, the travel
and per diem costs for such work will be the actual costs to the Countyfor such travel and
per diem. Actual costs to the County will be determined by the most recent County
ordinance establishing travel and per diem reimbursement rates for County employees.
Special costs are those approved in advance by Contractor for particular speciilized
equiprnent, supplles, tools and materials to be used by County in performing under this
Agreement.

B' Other Countv Contractors. Where work and services under this Agreement are performed
by another County contractor, the consideration to be paid by this Contractor to Coun$ for such services and
work is the sum total of (1) the contract costs and (2) administrative costs, for each bounty contractor who
performs any work or services under this Agreement.

('!) Contract Costs. The total costs to the County (including all labor, travel and per
diem, overhead, adrninistrative costs, and other fees) charged by such other contractor to
county for the performance of work or services under this Agreement.(2) Administralive Costs. The product of the contract cost muttiplied by 2}o/o (0.20),
plus any special costs as defined in Section 3.A.(3) above,

c. Limit Upon.Amount Pavable Under Aoreement. The tolal sum of all payments made by the
Agreemeni, shall not exceedContractor to County for services and work performed under this

$ ZERO Dollars ($0 .00)
(hereinafter referred to as "contract lim
work or services requested by Contractor

it".) County expressly reserves the right to decline to perform any
which would be in excess of the contract limit.D. Billing and Paymqn!. Coun$ shall submit to the Contractor, once a month, an itemized

statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the Contractor's request.
This statement will be submitted to the Contractor not later than the fifth (Sth) day of the month. The
statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and
including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will ideniify the date on wFich the servicLs and
work were performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.
County's statement to the Contractor will also include an itemization of any travei or per diem *xpenses
incurred_ by County during that period. Upon timely receipt of the statemeht Uy the fiflh (5th) day of the
month, Contractor shall make payment to County on or before the last day of the month.E' Federal and State Taxes. Contractor will not withhold any federal or state income taxes or
social security from any payments made by Contractor to County under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

County's obligation is to perform, in a reasonably timely manner, those services and work identified
in Attachment A which are requested by the Contractor. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance
of these services and work will require a flexible schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, in
coordination with County, to ensure that all services and work requested by Contractor under this Agreement
can be performed within the time frames set by County.

County of lnyo Contract - No. 130
(County Services)

Page 2 of 8
4712212A19



5. REQUIRED LIGENSES, CERTIFICATES, ETC.

A Any requirements for licenses, certificates, permits, documents, reports, studies, or
statements, etc. by the federal, state, county, or municipal governments (including, but not limited to, the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEOA), the Na1onal dnvironmental policy Act
(NEPA), and similar statutes and regulations) for Contractor to have the services and work describ-ed in
Attachment A performed, musl be mei by Contractor at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as
otherwise may be required. Further, during the lerm of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such
licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Such licenses, cedificates, permits, etc. will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor'will provide County,
upon its request, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, permits, etc. which are required.
Where there is a dispute belween Contractor and County as to what lieenses, ee*ificates, permits, eic. are
required to have the services identified in Attachment A performed, County reserves the right to make such
determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B' Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered traniaciions by any federai
departm,ent or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procuremerit
Programs issued by the General Services Adrninistration available at: htto:/l.www.sam.oov.

6. COUNTYPROPERTY.

- A. Personal Propgrty of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
gfety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exilusive pro'perty of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while ihey are in
Contractols possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to suih items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor,s negligence.

B. Products, of Countt's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications,.blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computei
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, tradernarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are-th6 result,
product, or manifestation of, County's services or work under this Agreement are, and ai the termination of
this Agreement rernain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.

7. STATUS OF PARTIES.

All acts of County, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, anO not as agents, officers, or employees of
Contractor. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on ben"$
of County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, County has no authority or iesponsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the Contractor. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor h to
be considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and Cbunty that this Agreement
shall. not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee reiationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A- County shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services
to be provided by County under this Agreement.

B. County shall be responsible to Contractor only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shatl not be subjected to Contractor's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of County in fulfillment of this Agreement.C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are not, and at all times during the term of
this Agreement shall not, represent or conduct themselves as employees of county.

County of lnyo Contract - No^ 130
(County Services)

Page 3 of 8
0712212A19



8. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall.defend, indemnlfy, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performan"" oi
this Agreement. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agenis, officers, and
employees harmless applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, or iamage or destruction to
tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use. Contractor's obligation under thiJ paragraph extends
to. aly claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other costs which is clused, or alleged to 6e'caused, in
whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents, employees, supplidr, or any one direcfly
or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any of'them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any policy of insurance.'

To the extent permifted by law, Coun$ shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, jncluding litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or iesulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees. Couniy does not by this Agreement
waive anyclaim filing requirement established by the California Government Code.

9. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreernent, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

F lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts,. and kanscripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evalulte the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

10. NONDISCRIMINATION.

. - ..During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlaMully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, becauie of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employee_s shgll comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housin! Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civit nigdis Act of 1964 (p.L. 8g-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

11. CANCELLATION.

^ This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agieenient
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty {30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

County of lnyo Conlract - No. 130
(County Services)

Page 4 of 8
07t22t2019



12. ASSIGNMENT.

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of
County. Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without
the prior written consent of County.

13. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor fails to pay County for the work and services performed by Coung in a timely
manner, or fails in any way as required by the Agreement, County may declare the Contractor in default and
terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default,
Contractor will pay to County all amounts owing to County for services and work performed to the date of
termination.

14. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed io be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph nineteen (19) below.

15. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of performance under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidenliai.
Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such confidential,
privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express wrilten consent of the
County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written consent is solely
and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

16. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

17. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
County statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, br the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

18. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph nineteen
(19) {Amendment}.

County of lnyo Contract - No. 130
(County Services)

Page 5 of 8
07t22t2019



19. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreernent, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuig.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

ce.

Department
Address
City and State

Contractor:
tcs Name

Address
City and State

Street
San Antonio. TX 7

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT-

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

I'il ilil

County of lnyo Contract - No. 130
(Coung Services)

Page 6 of I
07122t2019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO
AND ICS

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnmate Communication Svstem SERVTCES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF

COUNTY CONTRACTOR

Dated Mike Ken
Signature

nedv
Type or Print Name

g2*^ 121212020

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

CoungAuditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Contract - No. 130
(County Services)

Page 7 of 8
07t22t2019



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ICS

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnmate Communication Svstem SERVTCES

TERM:

FROM 12t1st2020 TO: 1211512O23

SCOPE OF WORK:

Equipment and Services Provided by ICS:

Centralized Enforcer@ lnmate Telecommunications Platform, housed in ICS ' Atlanta data center and backed up at its
data center in San Antonio, along with the following:

7 stainless steel inmate telephones, 1 booking phone, B visitation phone sets all connected to the Enforcer for monitoring
& recording of all non-confidential calls and TDD/TTY units and/or VRS units, as needed, for hearing impaired inmates. i
master control visitation workstation, 1 lobby visitation registration station equipped with security keyboard, 9 vPhone
multi-functional inmate video kiosks (10 " enabled with: lnmate phone calling, Onsite + remote video visitation with
required bandwidth provided by lCSolutions, Resident Portal inmate visitation viewing & management, Commissary
ordering, Document viewing - inmate rules, handbook, etc.), 4 public vPhones (17 " ) to enable onsite visitation,
Consolidated user management of phone and video services via a single GUI (single login), Universal public Web portal to
support Prepaid Account funding and visitation scheduling , Long-term recording storage of visitation sessions, Unlimited
ENFORCER@ user licenses, JMS and commissary / banking interfaces, lnmate voicemail messaging, Online storage of all
call recordings and call data for the entire contract duration, 24 x7 x 365 live, U.S.-based service for facility staff & called
parties, Local technicians to provide onsite maintenance & support, lnitial and ongoing training for all facility users,
All-inclusive warranty, support, and repair/replace maintenance package, The VisitorTM Visitation Management Module,
The ENFORCER Investigative Suite:, The Word Detector keyword search tools, The Analyzer link analysis / data mining
tools, The ENFORCER IVR Suite, The lnformer PREA module, The Communicator paperless inmate communications
portal, The Attendant automated information line, Premium Voice Biometric Suite, Argus Transcription, Translation &
Keyword Search Suite, The Bridge lnmate Tablets and 12 wireless inmate tablets (additional tablets negotiable) including
turnkey installation including hardware, software, charging stations.

Rates , Charges and Commisions:

The following rates apply to calls from all Service Locations: Prepaid, Debit & Direct Bill Calling Rates, Per Minute Charge:
Local $0.21, lntrastate/lntraLATA $0.21 , lntrastate/lnterLATA $0.21, lnterstate $0.21, lnternational (Debit only) g0.75.
NOTES: Domestic interstate rates apply for calls to U.S. territories including American Samoa, Guam, Northern Mariana
lslands, Puerto Rico and U.S. Virgin lslands. All non-U.S. destinations are rated as international. Call rates shown do not
include local, county, state and federal taxes, regulatory fees and billing fees. Billing Fees (non-commissionable): Payment
Processing Fee (Live Agent) $5.95, Payment Processing Fee (lVR, tnternet & QwikCall)$3.00. Other Fees
(commissionable): lnmate Voicemail (per inbound message) $1.99, Remote Video Visitation per session up to 30 minutes)
_$7.50, Tablet photo sharing (per photo) $0.50, Tablet usage (per minute for information/entertainment) g0.b5, (All other
fees free or waived).

ICS shall pay to County a Gommission of 40% of the gross call revenue for all call types generated from County ' s
Service Locations. ln addition, ICS shall pay to County a Commission of 20o/o of any service fees collected with respect to
Tablet usage, 40% of any service fees collected with respect to Remote Video Visitation and 50% of any service fees
collected with respect to lnmate Voicemail.

County of lnyo Contract - No. 130
(County Services)

Page 8 of 8
07t22t2019



HALF-YEAR INYO COUNTY FILM 

COMMISSION REPORT 

JULY TO DECEMBER 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared for the Inyo County Supervisors 

Presented by Chris Langley on December 15, 2020 
lonepinemovies@aol.com (760) 937 1189     

Box 99 
Lone Pine, California 93545 

mailto:lonepinemovies@aol.com


 1 

“It was the best of times, it was the worst of times, it was the age of wisdom, it 
was the age of foolishness, it was the epoch of belief, it was the epoch of 
incredulity, it was the season of Light, it was the season of Darkness, it was 
the spring of hope, it was the winter of despair …, we had nothing before us, 
we were all going direct to Heaven, we were all going direct the other way …” 

A Tale of Two Cities, Para.1, Charles Dickens 

 

1. GENERAL REVIEW OF LAST SIX MONTHS 
 
Charles Dickens was talking about the time of the French Revolution and the two cities were 
London and Paris. I would suggest that 2020 has many similarities to this period: a presidential 
election, debates, a country divided, and economic collapse and, of course the COVID 19 
pandemic. There is not much debate that before the year ends or the President elect becomes 
the president inaugurated that the death toll will substantially exceed 300,000 Americans. 
 
The economy has collapsed, and California has been locked down twice with us sentenced to 
not leave our residences except for essential purposes. I for one am not exactly sure about 
what might constitute essential. I am pleased that seems now to include film companies as 
essential and catering, crews, props, sets are included.  Masks, hand sanitizing and social 
distancing the law, or at least sternly recommended. Rather than being accepted as good 
health sense, this became lost in political philosophizing about freedom. 
 



 2 

From the end of March 2020, when we lost a lucrative motorcycle commercial, until 
September, my phone did not ring but once from Hollywood.  Someone wanted to know what 
motels are open and which would I recommend as this director wanted to get his family out of 
the metropolitan area for a health and morale break.  
 
At the end of September, everything changed, at least from a filming perspective, and phone, 
email, and texting exploded as if a locked gate had been broken down. First up, I heard rumors 
of two productions actually filming in our area that I never saw. Rumor had it that one involved 
scantily dressed models, and I am not certain about the theme or style of the second. 
 
Then came the smoke. 
 



 3 

 

2. Challenges of COVID 19/ Toyota Commercial 
 
A long-time professional working partner called to say he had a Toyota commercial project with 
production company MJZ and what conditions, restrictions, and challenges would he meet in 
Inyo. His name is John Rizzi, and I think I have worked nearly five film projects with John over 
the years and I knew him to be a steadfast, competent, and serious location manager. I felt 
comfortable with him initiating me into the new world of Covid camera, crew, and film 
company work. He was going to work both with BLM locations and Inyo National areas.  He was 
puzzled because there were variations they were requiring. That was also their prerogative but 
as things both county and state-wide began to be organized, the permitting agents would say 
“whatever the county is requiring,” for it was a somewhat fluid situation.  Right up front I have 
to say October and November saw the county personnel handling the new situation very well 
from a filming perspective. Movie companies learned that they had to bring with them a COVID 
Compliance Officer (a brand new job requiring significant safety protocols), trained in all things 
pandemic and that helped. My experience was and is the film “get it” and cooperate with the 
restrictions pretty willingly, but that is not to say the last months have not been without 
challenges. 
 
This half year was an interesting and curious experience, and definitely a very new normal. I 
decided I wanted to know what it was like to be a crew working under the changing restrictions 
so I said when I arrived at the Prettybird base camp on Horseshoe Meadow Road I want to go 
through the compliance protocols.  I had my temperature taken, and filled out a short survey 
about where I had been what I had done after I left set yesterday. I was instructed to wear a 
mask at all time and social distance, and wash my hands 
and use hand sanitizer which was readily available.  
They also had three other enforcement officers around 
making sure no one forgot. 
 
I had asked to meet with John Rizzi and get his 
perspective.  He was waiting when I was “ok’d” to 
continue. Things seemed quiet and he said that the 
camera crew of nine were up at the Portals getting the 
needed shots, while everyone else was waiting back 
here. The crew consisted of about 80 I would guess. The shoot was for four days, and this 
seemed to be near the end. 



 4 

 
I chatted with him about how things were going and he acknowledge 
not great but it was good to be back working. . I already had a mask, and 
I got a blue wrist band. They are either red of blue. Red means they can 
modify social distancing as they have been cleared. Filming requires a 
crew to sometimes work close together. Blue means you’ve been tested 
that day, but you must observe all the restrictions.  They have it well in 
control, although the limitations do not make filming easy. 
 
John Rizzi came over and we got to spend some time talking about the 
changes to filming the pandemic has caused. First of all the first day 
everyone is getting to know each other and they need to bond. “It is 

really taking longer, and only today are the individuals working together the way it happened 
by the end of the first day.”  
 
John told me communication is definitely more difficult. He held up his small walky-talky and 

said that was very helpful. He said communicating with a mask on 
adds a new twist to film communications, but he seemed satisfied 
that it is workable and within the restrictions eventually filming on 
location can resume. 
 
As we climbed “back into the saddle,” I wanted to thank BLM 
permitting agent Ely Lane, and  
David Anderson, Phillip Desenzie, and Rosalie Herrera with the Inyo 
National Forest with their positive, helpful attitude in dealing with our 
new, unique challenges. Finally our Inyo County COVID team of 
Marylin Mann, Katie Bardonnex, and Lesley Chapman keep us safe 

and informed to facilitate the return to safe filming. 

 



 5 

 
3. Kia Commercial 

 
 
Kia was here for several days, filming in several places including by McDonalds, the VFW and 
Nazarene Church.  Although they had large cranes with flood lights, no too many people 
noticed.  The crew was substantial and Manuel Ruiz worked on the projects and these photos 
are his.   
 
The biggest challenge was they wanted to build a boxing ring for the commercial and were 

interested in the Town 
Fathers’ land south of the 
VFW.  Turns out Tam Joseph 
is on that committee is on 
the three-person 
committee, so I told her we 
need to now call them the 
Town Fathers and Mother., 
but the group wondered if 
the lighting could be 
connect.  Ezra Tsotie, 
LADWP offered to see about 
reconnecting, but he said a 
generator would be easier.  

Then the movie company moved to Independence in an empty lot and finally found a place in 
the desert there. But I was reminded “It takes a village to do a film.” 

 
 
 



 6 

4. British Project: National Geographic’s “Drain the Ocean.” 
 

From time to time I get to work with a production company overseas.  The biggest challenge is 

London is going to bed when we on the West Coast are getting up. Meaghan McCamman, 
assistant director was a big help over there, and the director and producer Daniel Hardy Hall 
also helped get things organized.  I suggested that because of COVID restrictions their crew 
might have trouble getting in the country.  I had never heard of this National Geographic show, 
but Museum Director Shawn Lum had seen one they did of the Bay Area and she assured me it 
was good. 

Then the five-person crew dropped to two, then they hired two 

photographers in country and finally 
one drone operator/ videographer 
from Los Angeles who started in Bodie 
and ended filming the sunset in the 
Alabama Hills. Hardy was concerned 
we followed proper restrictions, that 
we both wear masks and shield.  The 
videographer was to being approve 
PPE for both sides of the ocean, but 
the drone operator resisted doing so. I 
was there to guide him to three spots 
that they had identical from Google Maps. 

The show was about desert communities and our role was B roll or the footage they put into he 
project to go from one theme to another. I thought the sunset I arranged for the shoot was 
“brilliant” as they say in Britain. 



 7 

 
 
 

5. Invasion (An Amazon Feature Film) 
 

 
Note: Draft of story that ran in The Inyo Register 
 
AMAZON FILMS TAKE OVER LONE PINE’S STREETS FOR NEARLY A WEEK AS “INVASION” ,.ROLLS 
TOWARDS COMPLETION 
 
This last week has seen a film company of 100 cast and crew members filling streets, sidewalks, 
restaurants, and motel rooms in Lone Pine as  they worked on a science fiction film. It has a 
diverting plot about a father experiencing PTSD as he travels up the Eastern Sierra with his two 
sons. 
 



 8 

As well as an interesting story of imaginary (or are they real aliens?), the film gives an audience 
an understanding of  and familiarity with out Eastern Sierra Landscape that may encourage a 
visit. In this pandemic eroded tourist economy we have been left with, all the help we can get 
should be welcomed. “I am excited about the film strengthening our reputation as America’s 
‘favored back lot’ but the economic infusion from the nearly week-long stay has provided us a 
good stimulation just when it helps,” commented Inyo Film Commissioner Chris Langley, as he 
watched the action across the street outside and inside the Bonanza Restaurant.  “In a way we 
are playing ourselves in this movie a small rural town with mountains and deserts that call to 
many visitors. Except Corvid 19 has discouraged visitation, and right now again the virus is on 
the surge.” 
 
It takes a lot of people to make a movie from beginning to end, and this film is no exception. 
Grips to ready the set, lighting, props, make-up, and costumes are just some of the pieces to be 
assembled and coordinated when on location. “I began working with Location Manager Michael 
Chickey about three months ago making suggestions for locations for each shot and scene,” the 
film commissioner commented. “Michael is somewhat familiar with our area as he has a cabin 
in the Mammoth area and frequently passes through on his way to the snow and skiing. For 
instance we talked a lot about Dirty Socks, the hot springs south of Olancha where he thought 
the characters could take a dip. But the crew had to conceal the brick of the pool, so it looked 
more natural.  That became a bigger deal as shoot day approached.” 
 
The job of the location manager and the Assistant Key Location Manager Allison Cox became 
more intense as shoot days piled up. The two are genius at solving problems and challenges, 
coordinating the talent crew, art department and even carpenters, and air “thickeners” as the 



 9 

special effects technicians create ambiance in the Bonanza Café.  It involves both balance and 
careful timing. 
 
British director Michael Pearce is at the helm of this picture.  He has several projects under his 
belt, but he wrote as well directed this film.  He seems well-liked by cast and crew, as one 
person remarked he was blithesome, almost light- hearted when he would suggest approaching 
a film challenge in a different way. That helped them get through the day of very high south 
winds on Tuesday. Another crew remarked it was a hard day but really good for the film and its 
look, giving a palpable sense of the Eastern Sierra desert and blowing sand and even pebbles. 
 
The father is played by Riz Ahmed who is protecting his sons from aliens. Riz is of Pakistani 
descent and the first south Asian male actor to win an Emmy. He graduated from Oxford and 
has had a second career in music. As a rapper he is known as Riz MC. He appeared in Rogue One 
a Star Wars Film, and the western The Sisters Brothers. Oscar winner Octavia Spencer is also in 
the film but does not need to be in Lone Pine.  



 10 

They filmed in several locations around southern Inyo, including Dirty Socks, The Trails Motel 
and they used the museum grounds for staging, the Bonanza Restaurant, in front of the Lone 
Pine Super Market, requiring the closing of one block, granted by the Inyo Supervisors. Parking 
in the heart of Lone Pine required jockeying parking which Chickey worked very hard on to have 
the least negative impact on customers shopping at local businesses. They even created a 

permanent mural on the wall of the super 
market. 
 
“All told, after a film drought through 
most of 2020 due to the pandemic it was 
fun and beneficial to have this film here, 
kinda like the old days,” Langley said with 
a grin on his face. “I just love filming, even 
my peripheral position and we can look 
forward hopefully to several films and 
Amazon episodic TV in January 2021. 
 
 
 

 
 

6. Local Film Companies 
Did 



 11 

you know we have two home grown film companies that have been working during this half 
year? Bristlecone Media owned by Ryan Christanson captured  tours of local museums guided 
by personnel from the museums for the Eastern Sierra History Conference streaming this year. 
 
Laughing Parrot Productions filmed tours of movie locations with guides for the Museum of 
Western Film History for their Western Watch Party, another streaming event. The company 
with Jason Brown also created all the necessary internet technology for the over 200 attendees 
tuning it from Australia and Europe as well as western film fans from the United States. 
 

7. Future projects 
 
There are several projects on the docket mostly in early January 2021. 

 
 

 Netflix: “The Old Man” with  Jeff Bridges shooting three episodes in Lone 
Pine, and Bishop chalk bluffs. Pushed (or postponed) because of star’s health 

 “The Grey Man” a (CIA themed feature film in Death Valley 

 Nissan: a large commercial coming before this weekend, if lock down doesn’t 
effect it 

 Amy Caul: a short film entitled “Lone Pine” for a fabric company 

 A 20-person crew filming with the electric car put into the shots using CGI 
back in the studio 

 Rick Rosenthal, a four-time Emmy winning cinematographer for National 
Geographic filming a two part series here, has volunteered to do a 
presentation and show his work capturing wild animals. He is filming black 
bears next week. 

 
 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Economic 
Development

 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Inyo County Community Resiliency Grant 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) adopt the Inyo County Resiliency Grant Program for nonprofit organizations as proposed or 
amended, using $100,000 of General Fund money appropriated by your Board for the 2020-21 Fiscal Year; and 
B) authorize the County Administrator to approve and enter into grant program contracts in accordance with the 
program guidelines, in a form approved by county counsel.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County recognizes and appreciates that local nonprofit organizations continue to provide services during the 
pandemic despite the fact that fundraising events have been canceled and other revenue streams impacted, 
while expenses continue to accrue. Many of these same organizations provide assistance to Inyo County citizens 
who have been most severely impacted by COVID-19. Therefore, grant funds will be provided for economic 
support to organizations that can demonstrate negative financial impacts due to COVID, and priority will be given 
to those that are focused on addressing the needs of our disenfranchised or disadvantaged citizens, thereby 
improving the quality of life in Inyo County.

As proposed, this program will provide grants up to $10,000 each to qualified nonprofit organizations that provide 
services to the citizens of Inyo County based on criteria that is explained in the attached guidelines. There will be 
an evaluation panel of 3 – 5 people, including County staff and members of the community. The attached grant 
guidelines provide more information including an overview of the program, eligibility and application 
requirements, the proposed timeline, sample evaluation criteria scoring sheet and a brief description of the 
selection procedure. 

The grant application, contract and final report will all be administered electronically using DocuSign. This was 
the procedure used for the REVIVE Grant Program and it worked very well.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
In August, your Board approved the REVIVE Grant Program for small, local businesses, where there was 
$800,000 of CARES Act funding allocated to approximately 100 businesses to offset some of the financial 
impacts caused by COVID-19. This is the equivalent of that program for nonprofit organizations.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
No alternatives will be presented today.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funds for this grant program are appropriated in the 2020-21 fiscal year budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County Commuinty Resiliency Grant Guidelines (final)
 
APPROVALS:
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 12/9/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/10/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/10/2020



INYO COUNTY COMMUNITY RESILIENCY GRANT
Guidelines

INTRODUCTION

Inyo County is seeking grant applications for the Community Resiliency Grant program from 
nonprofit organizations that play an important role in supporting our local economy, improving 
the quality of life in Inyo County, and addressing unmet needs of those in our community 
most severely impacted by COVID-19. 

Inyo County recognizes that these entities continue to provide services with significant 
reductions in revenue due to the pandemic, so during adoption of the Inyo County 2020-21 
budget, the Board of Supervisors allocated $100,000 of County General Fund money to 
support economic and community resiliency, and to offset COVID-19 related economic 
hardships and disruptions to local nonprofit organizations. 

OVERVIEW

1. Grant funds will be provided for economic support to Inyo County nonprofit entities that were 
financially impacted by COVID-19 and priority will be given to those that are focused on 
addressing the needs of our disenfranchised or disadvantaged citizens, thereby improving the 
quality of life in Inyo County. Funding must be necessary due to the financial impacts of COVID-
19 and be used to mitigate these impacts. 

2. Grants will be awarded to the applicants who receive the highest ranking score based on the 
criteria set forth below. An evaluation panel comprised of 3 – 5 people including County staff 
and members of the community will review and score responses to determine and select the 
top ranked entities. Award recommendations will be presented to the County Administrative 
Officer for final approval. 

3. Individual grant awards of up to $10,000 will be issued to qualified nonprofit organizations 
that provide services to the citizens of Inyo County. 

4. Applicants awarded grants will be required to enter into a contract with the County setting 
forth applicable terms and conditions of receiving funding.



ELIGIBILITY

To be eligible, a nonprofit:
MUST:
 Adequately demonstrate that funding is necessary due to the financial impacts of COVID-19 and 

will be used to mitigate these impacts

 Be a legally organized Nonprofit Entity under Internal Revenue Code Section 501

 Primarily serve the residents of Inyo County

 Directly provide services or goods that are available to, or benefit, the general public

CANNOT:

 Be exclusively engaged in lobbying 

 Be primarily engaged in distributing funds to other organizations or individuals

 Use grant funds for an inherently religious activity.  An inherently religious activity includes 
activities such as religious worship, instruction, or proselytization.  However, a religious 
organization that provides secular social services, such as a food bank, disaster relief, or 
a mentoring program, is not engaged in an inherently religious activity.

 Be any of the following:

o An educational institution

o A social, recreational, sports, or booster club

o A private foundation

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

 Complete the application form via DocuSign

 Attach a narrative with the following:
1. A brief description of your organization, including mission, goals and history in Inyo 

County.
2. Describe how your organization has made a significant community benefit in the past.
3. Describe how your organization has made a significant community benefit during the 

COVID-19 pandemic
4. Describe the direct and indirect impacts your entity has suffered from COVID-19
5. Describe the intended use of the grant

 Attach the following documents:
1. IRS Determination Letter showing the organization’s nonprofit status
2. Most recent tax filing – Form 990
3. Financial statements for the period from 3/1/2019 – 12/31/2019
4. Financial statements for the period from 3/1/2020 – 12/31/2020



GRANT PROGRAM TIMELINE

Action Task Date/Time

Board of Supervisors approves grant program Tues – 12/15/20

Grant Information Webinar Wed – 1/6/21: 3:00 p.m.

Application Submittal Window Mon – 1/11 to Fri - 1/29: 5:00 p.m.

Committee reviews and processes applications Mon – 2/1 to Fri – 2/19

Notification letter goes to applicants Week of  2/22

Sign contracts and process payments Starting Mon - 3/1

Grants awarded no later than Fri – 3/15

Final reports due no later than Fri – 5/28

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Upon review of the application, the evaluation panel will use the following evaluation criteria and 
rating points to determine the most highly qualified entities.

Evaluation Criteria Maximum    Points 
Possible

Written Narrative 20

COVID-19 Impacts 30

Community Benefit 20

Financial Reports 20

Completeness and Quality of Application 10

     Total Points 100

SELECTION PROCEDURE

 An evaluation panel comprised of County staff and members of the community will review and 
score applications and select the top ranked entities based on the evaluation criteria. The final 
selection of grantees will be presented to the County Administrative Officer for final approval.

 The County reserves the right to reject any or all applications for cause, or to waive minor 
irregularities in said applications, or to award amounts different than those requested. 

 The County will notify all applicants whether or not they are selected for the grant award. Email 



is the County’s preferred method of communication for all stages of the grant process. 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Cap Aubrey, Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed operational changes to the Independence and Lone Pine landfills. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the following operational changes at the Independence and Lone Pine landfills:

A)  Add two, 40-yard bins at the Independence landfill for household trash, maintain the same operating days, 
and change the landfill public hours to 7:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. on both days;

B)  Change the Lone Pine landfill hours to be open Thursday through Monday from 7:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., 
adding Thursday and Sunday to the current operating schedule;

C)  Find that (1) the proposed changes at the two landfills have already been addressed under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in two mitigated negative declarations (MNDs); (2) no subsequent or 
supplemental environmental review or further documentation is required pursuant to PRC 21166 and 14 CCR 
15162  because:  (a) the proposed changes do not involve new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of any previously identified significant effects, (b) no substantial changes are proposed to 
the project. (c); the proposed changes in daily operations are permitted in the existing SWFPs for the two 
landfills, (d) no substantial changes in circumstances under which the project is being undertaken have occurred, 
and (e) no new information that was not known at the time of the preparation of the previous MNDs 
documentation has become available;

D) Find that the proposed operational changes are exempt under 14 CCR section 15061 (the “common sense 
exemption”) for the reasons presented above, because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that these minor operational changes will have a significant effect on the environment. Also find that the 
operational changes are exempt under 14 CCR section 15301 (the “existing facilities exemption”), because they  
provide for the continued operation of the two existing landfills which involves negligible or no expansion of the 
existing use of the facilities. Additionally, there are no unusual circumstances or other exceptions under CEQA 
that would invalidate the existing facilities exemption for the two landfills; and

E) Direct staff to file a notice of exemption.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Inyo County Recycling and Solid Waste staff is recommending operational changes at the two South-County 
landfills to mitigate recurring problems including exceeding daily tonnage limits, illegal dumping, and blowing 
trash. These changes are within the parameters of the County’s existing landfill permits. Although it is not a 
requirement for your Board to approve these changes in order for the landfill operations to be adjusted as 
recommended, staff has previously brought such changes before your Board in order to, among other things, 
better inform the public of changes to this public service. 

Background Information:

The County operates the Independence and Lone Pine Landfill facilities on land leased from the City of Los 
Angeles. The Independence landfill operates under a SWFP issued by the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board (now Cal Recycle) on April 21, 2000 and the Lone Pine landfill operates under a SWFP 
issued on March 28, 2000. The Independence SWFP allows the facility to operate from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., 
with public hours from 7:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. five days a week and to receive a maximum of 10 tons of waste per 
operating day. The Lone Pine Permit allows the facility to operate from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., with public hours 
from 7:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. five days a week and to receive a maximum of 22 tons of waste per operating day. 
These landfills accept household trash; construction and demolition debris; chipable wood; dead animals; and 
various recyclable materials.

From 2000 to 2014, the Independence landfill was open to the public 5 days a week (Wednesday through 
Sunday) and the Lone Pine landfill was open 5 days a week (Friday through Tuesday). On February 25, 2014, as 
a cost saving measure as part of an attempt to reduce the deficit in the County’s General Fund, your Board 
approved a reduction in the days of operation of the two landfills. Pursuant to your Board’s action, effective April 
19, 2014, the public operating days of the Independence landfill were limited to Thursday and Sunday, and hours 
were reduced to 7:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on Thursday, and the public operating hours of the Lone Pine landfill 
were reduced to 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on Friday, Saturday and Monday. 

Following the closure of the Lone Pine landfill on Thursdays, commercial waste haulers who collect waste in the 
southern Owens Valley, have hauled the collected waste to the Independence landfill (instead of the Lone Pine 
landfill) on Thursdays resulting in an exceedance of the maximum  permitted daily tonnage limit at the 
Independence landfill. Consequently, the solid waste program is regularly forced to choose between exceeding 
the tonnage limits and the Independence landfill and turning customers away. In an effort to remedy this problem, 
in 2014, the Recycling and Waste Management Department proposed revisions to SWFPs for the Independence 
and Lone Pine landfills to increase the maximum permitted daily tonnage. LADWP, as the representative of the 
land owner, has declined to approve the permit revisions and the permits have not been issued. As a result, the 
problem of exceeding the maximum daily tonnage limits continues. While the previously requested permit 
revisions to increase daily tonnage limits remain pending, staff recommends the following interim operational 
changes that will improve service, reduce blown trash and reduce occurrences of exceeding the daily tonnage. 

Independence Landfill:

Staff recommends that the Independence Landfill remain open on Thursday and Sunday every week from 7:30 to 
3:30. Historically, the maximum daily tonnage limits at the Independence landfill have been exceeded on 
Thursdays when the Lone Pine Landfill is closed and the commercial waste haulers are forced to haul their 
collected waste to the Independence landfill. If these expanded hours of operation are approved, the Lone Pine 
landfill will be open on Thursdays giving the commercial haulers the option of dumping in Lone Pine thereby 
reducing the risk of going over the tonnage limit at the Independence landfill. Also, to allow the County to 
maintain the same service level for our customers at the Independence landfill, while helping the landfill to stay 
within its permitted daily tonnage limits, staff recommends placing two, forty-yard, roll off containers with lids at 
the Independence landfill for household trash and green waste. The household trash and green waste brought to 
the landfill averages 4 tons per day, representing 40% of the daily allowed tonnage. The bins will be covered as 
necessary to prevent trash from blowing out, and to stop birds and other animals from digging in the trash. 
Currently, all the waste that Independence landfill receives is compacted and covered on site daily. Under the 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

proposed operational change, to help the landfill stay within its permitted daily tonnage limits, the contents of the 
two containers will be dumped on site on days when there is tonnage capacity. 

Additionally, removing the daily disposal of household trash and green waste at the landfill through the use of the 
two bins will reduce the need for a full time equipment operator at that location because household trash and 
green waste must be compacted and covered daily, while construction and demolition debris does not. The 
landfill operator will maintain the construction and demolition debris pile and perform other operator duties only 
on the days he/she empties bins. Also, not having to compact and cover household trash and green waste on a 
daily basis will take away the need to push up and haul dirt from the pit to the active face will save on fuel, 
maintenance and labor.  

Lone Pine Landfill:

Staff recommends changing the operating schedule at the Lone Pine landfill by opening two additional days per 
week. If approved, the landfill will be open Thursday through Monday each week from 7:30 am to 3:30 pm. 
In addition to better serving the community, adding days of operation is expected to reduce the daily tonnage at 
the landfill.  

The additional days will also allow staff to work with contracted waste haulers on schedules that will reduce the 
likelihood of going over the allowed daily tonnage. Another benefit is that the expanded hours will provide the 
opportunity to more efficiently utilize staff and resources. For example, while current regulations require the 
covering of household trash at the end of every shift, alternative daily cover or a tarp may be used as long as the 
active face is utilized within 24 hours. With the new schedule, tarps can be utilized, cutting the daily cover usage 
by 50% by eliminating six inches of cover between daily layers. Consequently, it is anticipated that no additional 
staff will be required to execute these changes.

LADWP and CEQA:

As the representative of the landowner, LADWP has requested the County to apprise LADWP of proposed 
revisions to the landfills leased to the County as well as the County’s plans to comply with CEQA with respect to 
any proposed revisions. With regard to the proposed changes at the Independence and Lone Pine landfills, by 
letter to your Board dated December 7, 2020, LADWP informed your Board that “LADWP supports the County of 
Inyo (County) taking actions to come into compliance with its existing solid waste facility permits, last issued in 
2000.” The letter also states that “LADWP is hopeful that the County’s decision to restore operation at the Lone 
Pine Landfill to five days will deter illegal dumping, and help the County come into compliance with its existing 
permits.” Although the December 7, 2020 letter states LADWP’s support for the proposed changes, the letter 
expresses concern the County has not adequately complied with CEQA with respect to the proposed changes. 
As explained below, LADWP’s CEQA concern is without merit.

The SWFPs for the Independence and Lone Pine landfills were issued following compliance with CEQA. The 
respective SWFPs established the operational hours and the maximum daily permitted tonnage at each landfill. 
The proposed revisions to the operating hours at each landfill fall within the operating hours and other activities 
permitted by the respective SWFPs. With respect to the Independence landfill, the SWFP was addressed in a 
MND dated April 16, 1999 and the SWFP for the Lone Pine landfill was addressed in a MND dated May 6, 1999.  
No subsequent or supplemental environmental review or further documentation is required pursuant to PRC 
21166 and 14 CCR 15162 because: (1) the proposed changes will not result in substantial changes to activities 
permitted by SWFPs that would require revision of the MNDs ; (2) the proposed changes in daily operations are 
permitted by the existing SWFPs; (3) no substantial changes in circumstances under which the two landfills are 
being operated have occurred that would require revision of the MNDs; and (4) no new information that was not 
known at the time of the preparation of the MNDs has become available. 

Independent of the fact that the proposed changes have already been addressed in accordance with CEQA and 
no further assessment is required by CEQA, the changes also are exempt from CEQA. The proposed operational 
changes are exempt under 14 CCR section 15061 (the “common sense exemption”) for the reasons presented 



Agenda Request 
Page 4

above, because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that these minor operational changes will 
have a significant effect on the environment. Also, under 14 CCR section 15301 (the “existing facilities 
exemption”), the operational changes provide for the continued operation of the two existing landfills which 
involves negligible or no expansion of the existing use of the facilities, so that exemption also applies. 
Additionally, there are no unusual circumstances or other exceptions under CEQA that would invalidate the 
existing facilities exemption for the two landfills.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The County operates the Independence and Lone Pine Landfill facilities on land leased from the City of Los 
Angeles. The Independence landfill operates under a SWFP issued by the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board (now Cal Recycle) on April 21, 2000 and the Lone Pine landfill operates under a SWFP 
issued on March 28, 2000. The Independence SWFP allows the facility to operate from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
five days a week and to receive a maximum of 10 tons of waste per operating day. The Lone Pine Permit allows 
the facility to operate from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. five days a week and to receive a maximum of 22 tons of waste 
per operating day. These landfills accept household trash; construction and demolition debris; chipable wood; 
dead animals; and various recyclable materials.

From 2000 to 2014, the Independence landfill was open to the public 5 days a week (Wednesday through 
Sunday) and the Lone Pine landfill was open 5 days a week (Friday through Tuesday). On February 25, 2014, as 
a cost saving measure as part of an attempt to reduce the deficit in the County’s General Fund, your Board 
approved a reduction in the days of operation of the two landfills. Pursuant to your Board’s action, effective April 
19, 2014, the public operating days of the Independence landfill were limited to Thursday and Sunday, and hours 
were reduced to 7:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on Thursday, and the public operating hours of the Lone Pine landfill 
were reduced to 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on Friday, Saturday and Monday. 

Following the closure of the Lone Pine landfill on Thursdays, commercial waste haulers who collect waste in the 
southern Owens Valley, have hauled the collected waste to the Independence landfill (instead of the Lone Pine 
landfill) on Thursdays resulting in an exceedance of the maximum  permitted daily tonnage limit at the 
Independence landfill. Consequently, the solid waste program is regularly forced to choose between exceeding 
the tonnage limits and the Independence landfill and turning customers away. In an effort to remedy this problem, 
in 2014, the Recycling and Waste Management Department proposed revisions to SWFPs for the Independence 
and Lone Pine landfills to increase the maximum permitted daily tonnage. LADWP, as the representative of the 
land owner, has declined to approve the permit revisions and the permits have not been issued. As a result, the 
problem of exceeding the maximum daily tonnage limits continues. While the previously requested permit 
revisions to increase daily tonnage limits remain pending, staff recommends the following interim operational 
changes that will improve service, reduce blown trash and reduce occurrences of exceeding the daily tonnage. 

Independence Landfill:

Staff recommends that the Independence Landfill will remain open on Thursday and Sunday every week from 
7:30 to 3:30. Historically, the maximum daily tonnage limits at the Independence landfill have been exceeded on 
Thursdays when the Lone Pine Landfill is closed and the commercial waste haulers are forced to haul their 
collected waste to the Independence landfill. If these expanded hours of operation are approved, the Lone Pine 
landfill will be open on Thursdays giving the commercial haulers the option of dumping in Lone Pine thereby 
reducing the risk of going over the tonnage limit at the Independence landfill. Also, to allow the County to 
maintain the same service level for our customers at the Independence landfill, while helping the landfill to stay 
within its permitted daily tonnage limits.  Staff recommends placing two, forty-yard, roll off containers with lids at 
the Independence landfill for household trash and green waste. The household trash and green waste brought to 
the landfill averages 4 tons per day, representing 40% of the daily allowed tonnage. The bins will be covered as 
necessary to prevent trash from blowing out, and to stop birds and other animals from digging in the trash. 
Currently, all the waste that Independence landfill receives is compacted and covered on site daily. Under the 
proposed operational change, to help the landfill stay within its permitted daily tonnage limits, the contents of the 
two containers will be dumped on site on days when there is tonnage capacity.. 



Agenda Request 
Page 5

Additionally, removing the daily disposal of household trash and green waste at the landfill through the use of the 
two bins will reduce the need for a full time equipment operator at that location because household trash and 
green waste must be compacted and covered daily, while construction and demolition debris does not. The 
landfill operator will maintain the construction and demolition debris pile and perform other operator duties only 
on the days he/she empties bins. Also, not having to compact and cover household trash and green waste on a 
daily basis will take away the need to push up and haul dirt from the pit to the active face will save on fuel, 
maintenance and labor.  

Lone Pine Landfill:

Staff recommends changing the operating schedule at the Lone Pine landfill by opening two additional days per 
week. If approved, the landfill will be open Thursday through Monday each week from 7:30 am to 3:30 pm. 
In addition to better serving the community, adding days of operation is expected to reduce the daily tonnage at 
the landfill.  

The additional days will also allow staff to work with contracted waste haulers on schedules that will reduce the 
likelihood of going over the allowed daily tonnage. Another benefit is that the expanded hours will provide the 
opportunity to more efficiently utilize staff and resources. For example, while current regulations require the 
covering of household trash at the end of every shift, alternative daily cover or a tarp may be used as long as the 
active face is utilized within 24 hours. With the new schedule, tarps can be utilized, cutting the daily cover usage 
by 50% by eliminating six inches of cover between daily layers. Consequently, it is anticipated that no additional 
staff will be required to execute these changes.

LADWP and CEQA

As the representative of the landowner, LADWP has requested the County to apprise LADWP of proposed 
revisions to the landfills leased to the County as well as the County’s plans to comply with CEQA with respect to 
any proposed revisions. With regard to the proposed changes at the Independence and Lone Pine landfills, by 
letter to your Board dated December 7, 2020, LADWP informed your Board that “LADWP supports the County of 
Inyo (County) taking actions to come into compliance with its existing solid waste facility permits, last issued in 
2000.” The letter also states that “LADWP is hopeful that the County’s decision to restore operation at the Lone 
Pine Landfill to five days will deter illegal dumping, and help the County come into compliance with its existing 
permits.” Although the December 7, 2020 letter states LADWP’s support for the proposed changes, the letter 
expresses concern the County has not adequately complied with CEQA with respect to the proposed changes. 
As explained below, LADWP’s CEQA concern is without merit.

The SWFPs for the Independence and Lone Pine landfills were issued following compliance with CEQA. The 
respective SWFPs established the operational hours and the maximum daily permitted tonnage at each landfill. 
The proposed revisions to the operating hours at each landfill fall within the operating hours and other activities 
permitted by the respective SWFPs. With respect to the Independence landfill, the SWFP was addressed in a 
MND dated April 16, 1999 and the SWFP for the Lone Pine landfill was addressed in a MND dated May 6, 1999.  
No subsequent or supplemental environmental review or further documentation is required pursuant to PRC 
21166 and 14 CCR 15162 because: (1) the proposed changes will not result in substantial changes to activities 
permitted by SWFPs that would require revision of the MNDs ; (2) the proposed changes in daily operations are 
permitted by the existing SWFPs; (3) no substantial changes in circumstances under which the two landfills are 
being operated have occurred that would require revision of the MNDs; and (4) no new information that was not 
known at the time of the preparation of the MNDs has become available. 

Independent of the fact that the proposed changes have already been addressed in accordance with CEQA and 
no further assessment is required by CEQA, the changes also are exempt from CEQA. The proposed operational 
changes are exempt under 14 CCR section 15061 (the “common sense exemption”) because for the reasons 
presented above, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that these minor operational changes 
will have a significant effect on the environment. Also, under 14 CCR section 15301 (the “existing facilities 



Agenda Request 
Page 6

exemption”), the operational changes provide for the continued operation of the two existing landfills which 
involves negligible or no expansion of the existing use of the facilities.. Additionally, there are no unusual 
circumstances or other exceptions under CEQA that would invalidate the existing facilities exemption for the two 
landfills. 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Status quo could be maintained.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
The reduction in landfill hours in 2014 was an effort to obtain necessary budget savings at that time. The solid 
water program has sufficiently recovered and the proposed operational efficiencies make this plan executable 
and affordable. No material budget impacts are anticipated from the recommended changes; therefore, the 
proposed 2020-21 fiscal year budget is sufficient to fund these changes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. INDEPENDENCE LANDFILL PERMIT
2. LONE PINE LANDFILL PERMIT
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/8/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/8/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/9/2020
Clint Quilter Approved - 12/9/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/9/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 12/9/2020



---------rrtylPttTnit Nwb
SOLID WASTE FACiLITY PERMIT 14.AA4004

veenrhrp1 iffill

iid Sred of cility Nmt MJing Addresi Nmi Madrn Ad
ndpde41 Lndfifl Owiaton city ci Los MeI
ud Dnp nyo CurPy kic rod Wr.e Dpamto1 Wai Pr
ndnce CA 93526 783 Mair Street Su 300 Mnd3th SOe

shop CA 93514 Bhh CA 93514

Pmktd trMin Compristin eilty Procesin$ Fcitty

mbd wsos
Cipohi Fclit T1r Saton
ywd

IXI tndfTh Dpoal ttIomtor FcJflIy

M1 Rcey Facility Othef

rernd Noun of opefuQ Pubhc Hours 7O3O flv dy pt wtk t$ui holthy

Hoiu 730-430 Five days pte week

itLd ptin Dy To /7 TonsDy

P4pn8zardoi3 TosDay

NoHUaTdO$5udp TDay
NOo41U7dOt$ Samted or e0rnngd cabes TOflDy

NHazards Sectio of Pewit Toni/Day

Dit.d 5ion of PwiiU TorDay

Hfu 5e 5on 14 Pnni TosfDy

tmtTrI Vohnnt oti vernciiDy

.min nerith SO VOhiCi1D

Ooin we mierth IIor di5posai VhidDay
Oucn meriwm miriirevy priioi VlcksFDy

Kty Dvi Parmdi ___
Mu Dpdi IFL G5

TF pmit is ned soiey pator above nd is iot ransfabl Upa chate ol Qpentor This permit is no longer Further upon

desn or cperIts imir th dczibd lerei this p4rmiI bjCt to revocation or wip ns1oi The attached permit fInp pditiorn

nietri urtufthh

..EI1lt Agthcy Na aJ Ak1r
hryo County Lepar%rneftt ot tnvrnm1W heah

Stviees

Appn P.O 42
ndepdence CA 93526

4mefri-----
civvdbyC1WM f1 OWM CoitrrenceDte

APR 1623

itwVDL April 21 2005 1tPth5dDaIt April 2L 2000

-c

-vvt nz7 nnnz/AT/T

7.1

DedVl Cpcicy

Mix IofttMsU

ukrtd Cost Dais

-I -4

CEQA-Ol 0498



FUPmit Ntr4 1AA-003

SOLID WASTE FACiLITY PERMiT j2

13 dp
Th pernt ene wh th ny ouny Cnr hc Cornty wtk ordnee wIh PRC 5OOQO3

This Derrnht is with andards d�ped by th C1oni b1eyate Mnpment board CWM8 Pubic uu Code
5eiw 4401O

The desaji nd uptfkfi1 v4 th viy Whh thi rTrd SJid Hndfl
dtxmned by he LEk March 2000

The California DM1an dotutiy COF sdetemned that the facilhy is in conFomiance with app1ibe fire stdard ae equIred in PIic
OJTCeS Code Seciion 445L

Nl of Dnati filed with the State cin8house 99O4 1075 Or aO Ct5 iCt
Pub S.etioi 31011.6

June 23 999 tha lnyo County Pla nina Comn hson made detenn1ntion that the adflIy is consis$erfl wtih and dipaied in tha

applicable eeraJ pbn PubH Reowre Coda Sectiot 300003a

Oi jwo 23 Ike lnyo Cjny Plrnin Coo mada wiIn idni thai urmd%g land copb1a with tha

operation as required In Pubic karurca Coda Sectioi 500003b

14 ProItoi
The eritta prkbiid frtm dgnd waste zado.s nr nihg iat.ek unls cuth 1Ied below ndun the acceptance olsucti waste authorized by applicable permts

cceptance allowe
Used ilud oil flk ntiFrttze and automobile en for recycling as pro%ided for in S.ctkn 7n
Peed ah1mb aa prvidd Jr Sccr 17
Ask fromhowehold wood stoes or 6ertos an bb as xo4ided for io Seir tltm ______

15 The Mowia 4ocweda aho dasecribe andl rtslakt theptaLlon ul this bcility 0nast dbcuneM date

Date

Rcport Fcilhiy mtio COfflrc Acmei oalor MrI rflnh.rt
Ld Use Permi and linzl
UPessnits

Polutiou Pemlits and V.rances

or Ntativa fdaraiion

50199041073
LAmrg-gL-l33

owner and operecor z1nt Rfl

Xl ure Financial spor.aibility Documel 49 Other Ui

V3

tpI Ori .lIyIJi with RFI Stcdor 21 MOM LaiIdo 36 I.I Lnft tr 10.5

Date

9bXl Waste Dhthat Requlienients -954 16

Ii Local County Odirns

Preliminary Closure Post Ooswe atanarica Plan

CEQA-Ol 0499



SOLID WASTE FACILITY PERMIT

ldtMg PqIVTh daibd in the ftepofl of cillty Inqmtio wifl be repurd

____________________________________________________________________ O.Ja rem

1z or UPes be thirtd QUrtetIr LA
rhe shall cun btnt be flmid

CXpO5iOfl Wsdwe iiiflicdt of

pneJ octs cer
st.dden seftIemevit dlthirpuf

hzrdous ur oI mked dfur
ppwtydrra The shah be mnined on

the pffithes Da wtho ndd4 shall be

noted In Ihe ith u7t eriry
Mis1r4 d3llyInae oume recocd of OunerIv LEA

solld we tced by svaedreered
mes k4vIn the ibyty
ManIa1n thfly murve1de ctmIs Quarter1y LEA

the lI lavhg th cite

with rtcrwered Ti$
ProvIde HzjtIow PythibWofl

Sa1nxdi PruV ilIdudfrIZ

quntidA of na rial diicJ
responsrfdive C1 On errnffin

jtlQfl uf mYiL

jin ummry of mhoiin Qurtet1y LEA

MntAbl ADC inpeions evo Indudiq the Weekly As rquird below

rwnibet of ds nd type of ADC uied cpijiee
isuecowefed nd coryeclie aions taben

3umm1y of pubIk ivJ ieptaeory QuertrIy
nck received from ny

the oeros esuneslcoec1fv

ww quty conm o1turInL Pr WQC LA Qc
rtpo4IrIg nedicn releled prmm
nchd Wi flhb nut� 4p
rd sbemfl QkpenndiOft
schedules

Rvw the CWTeiI RDSI nd submIt mendrperns AJnUal epcn LEA

to th RDSI neswy chdki eogshk
nips showing filled te of the tedllky HeIih

vd 51etyTring PmLaid dcking
ra1n3ng provt wtel of wse cpclty
consumed us tsuh of wsv dhpossl ror be
pecd ye Cyth3iI.dII c3CiT
ydsl id the most currefl S4 of
reponsl fof the operalion of %h fiywhld
ndud rency phore Aumbets

wdoLI MniI 9v5rc Coeciry P4n LFA

Hswdous Mim lvVtOy UA

that the tepoa aiailsbk foi LEA tvew
tk opW5AdVA rPv OIc by the of

ibe roUuw1n nth

CEQA-Ol 0500



Mun 4AO4

17. LEA CsU
fle etot $hll omwhh MInrnu Standath sn1d we ndnd doa1 1pefl Thit 14 aM Tide CaFomia Ccde of

Rti4atIo cpeor ittopr tha fidy itt a1 equed pe Wtearoty ppnwÆThe crrshaD inspeci the siteeeq ftcient to nu conpltar WIth pplicb1e MfrMo1mkiga heiiatLin pkbI to this lclflty

The ha11 compy wh fl ppDb Tequberrr and cpnents ichvding li mti.ion and monkorkt measvrs hsied any adopted document
JThd suant PubDc Cndt Sctin D8t .6 nd afl dTnkua rnrrw rdr1 of with dksk al th IacDy

Tb operator slaU rk complete copy of this SWEP on the ernh Copies or afl LEA/OWMB repatur peicn uzts esFemen actions
thafi be ttaned at the main erated Watt Management oVice bict rtpots mtsi be readdy availab to ci1i petsonn LtA and ftstr apptpriateutc peotrseI

Addfthonal famatlo Co minthe cper1Jo of the fadfly shaH be FumIshd ipo request lot he LEA and other ubtory per3onn

The operator shati nl the LEA it wrhing of wy proposerl thange sn the facthty peradon or than Li fac.ilky dwing thpnin stases
tr CW5htt1 dG ysWlMcbae3 wesst ealor firtt submitsto the LEAa notice ofd thiat least tSO days beforesaldia thr prm
The LEA rew the dgPtt to suspend artdJo mdjthe sotd wae hndflrsg and oratton3 this when deemed tary duew arsy emericyplial beahh hazard andor pubflc ntnan

tid dltns of thki prnI may as nult ul Ih.bt saus utatiun tvik
This pennit ds nol telease the oetator from itS reonsibllby under any other existing vs ordirtance rulation or SIatUte of other venirnentend
Tb oad ckn proain and the pa rnonhortn prorasn shalt be 1ncoporased and matrtard in the mwt unt prud R031

Jtt powid ata and lise ik ac natod materials Pot1ab iter fetc will be used at the wndthi Face
aid itt the coittrol o1wlndbnwn materll

Akema dailycovermay beused aecongto curret ionandappoed bythe UA AIX.. useshafl be3ncorporate rntothemosutmntari
apprwBi RDSI

Dead umals thall be cowpkie1y covered at toon as potle and at minfrrnjrn ai the end or the wrking day wth of toiL Conaction f�flowt
after dernpoaitton

Ashes fmqn hjsehokj wood atoyat or indneratora and bum bemk shaD be dpottd away horn the woricing face and completely covered by the ed of
tho wurkir4 day with of mp edoi rqud

Used motor ott ott ftke andheze and batteries be accered Foi rcydin pirpotea only and shaD be stored and remotd in maimer not to crtate
noIsance hazard nherapuostandar Employeeshandbrtg these materials shaH be pro4ded aM requked lrainin

of ronioval lfts of 1andktg be maIntained fri the records for period of the yrs

CEQA-Ol 0501



Fty
Lone Lkdfl
End oSi go
Lo4ia Pn CA

_____

14-AA-0003

tone Lnfifl

dId Ld
Depmn gWr Pvt
Mdth Street

93S1

5pedtio

M. ton lEt M$U

MiCDh G$id

Comong Fty
mixd W3eS
Compuiing Fdhy
1yad wj
Lrdfjft Dbpoa 5e

Pcirg tfly

TrsŁr Stiton

TrnIomit FciHy

Thtk 22 I�.IDrj

22 TO1S/Day

1OflSIDy
Tn/fly
Ton3y
Torn/biy

nVy

73 VWvks/Dy

VehideDay

Ac Addr
tnyo County Dpe4i nwii H.iIIhSe
P.O 427
depnde CA

UWM Cnrref

XYd gC OOO/Ot/OT

SOLID WASTE FACIUTY PERMI1

Nw Mafl AdN
flyQ unty negred Wesj Mara8emern7t Mirn SfJeet 5uit

5ishp CA

Pwittted crit

Mj Recwe Fecliy 11 OthrPi1oum oEOplJom PuHc Hoi 73Q33O Rye dyperw ded on siied hofld
Opeiton fou 73O.43o Five days pe woek

rttd Te Oith ty
NQnl-jdj -Gn.e
Non.Hzrdcw She
NonH3zldov1 Sptd ortmk1 yI

14 PermftDdcsseQn 14 fennfton 14

remitted Traffic VO4W7

comij wage nsik
utO1nZ wa metCf dpoM

from merreeryoertion

Des c2p .1

The pemt nted etto the operator rmbo end na ra ble Up che oropr this pcmsh no ono vJ Fwther upongnIkntgt in deg from th descibed herein th permit isbje revocator or uspqnsion The tt�cJ pem tnnes nd cdiIon

Ar11
ktkKenned renr fln

edbyCIWM

io Due Dee 1arh 28 2005

MAci

l.tdOetMarh 28 2000

CEQA-0151 19



PdlityfPtqmI Ntob T4AOOSOUD WASTE FACiLITY PERMIT
12 LlDtr Fc3tity ateJ1 map withF ofctor 26 and 135 MUM La 36 356 LOn irOL1W

13 Ftd1n
This pTIk C045is with CyrrdPn .J th 5I fmr ac�o wIth PRC 500005
Th13 pmTI is cQr5is with .rdrd dopd by th QWomji irnagrd Wsie tmnr nI CiWMct7o 44010

The dpj and peai the ciUFy conpanca wh 5t Mhthtur1 5Tand1d for Sc4d Was Hadfln and ispust as
detmired by The LFA MrcIi 2O0

Th fiDhiioc orory Ufl ha deeermn thai ihe facility is in confoman with apUcabk ffr standd rqaird PbcCod Secloei 441ST

Nudc cDet rinatjo was filed with te Siare Ce ngIoue 905iO0 for aI whkt not eznpi from CEQA dociirneSii0 Z1O1
Jirn 23 t99 the nyo Ccnty Planning Ccmmiion made dmalion th the aciIiy is consistit with and Ti thcapcab prr PUbIC 5li cO0O.aj
June Z3 99 th lnyo Coufly PnnACoimade wrnm fndng ht rndr comp with the facilityrqu in PubUcRpur Code Secon 5000O3�

The pmi.e pr hbi ram ccetig gnavd hardo burnin5 oiouri uth W4C Ia spediry ied be- andihe epia ursth ie l0rized by aU pplicabc pwmii

Actepan ahnw
US0i oij fibers andfreeze and automobik beri For

tttycling aa pidcrd fr SIn 7n
17b

IS The decwk aJ 4cr an4fot rtit th u1 ahi aciity Wwt document date hap.ct

DateIx Ro Fadhiy nfwmatan
5/99 11 Conra Arcomn opcato ud tun

II Land tJe Penn and Condjtiart
Us Femite

Waate Disdiare Requreni i693-7DA1
Ak PoUutii Peratiita and Vanc ti COU OJin

orNepthe Dedaradon
Preimin3ry Con Poi Ctasur PbWH0S 1030

lxi Apements 6/
nend.wit to fl

fl PrClimk yCbevrp Coswe Plar
fl Other 11p

LXI uFani Rponsbibiy DOm 4/99

CEQA-Ol 5120



Faity7mk Kb i4--�SOUD WASTE FACILITY PERMIT

Iut c4ln the Rp F�1y rmliiWiI be rpoiird How

iwII Facrny A1ci
kg spet kir

The kg bi obe rn1b$

pjnjwy eddent
uuI t4sud�ei dtof

permlet entq�ap The kgsMlJ be makned
thfl

odin the kg with try

MairbkÆi and ohw reiJ of
tEAsofld waste teved bytyp edemo5L ngtMbe be ewe

MnUIn diymhkj cun� tn

LAvelcey flent th ftt nd ieMng th
with reco medab
Peytd Haedo Pwibkk Wa

LEAStn1Fo Progrvn Ickdkg

takes Inr
olmsrii

MIn mm
IA AQC ecer4 Indvdlng the Wky

rquird beQwtype ADC ue
i$53 iJ

pub4I compIIn revelved eao Que1y LEA

the opes ipon
wt

LEA nd kWQ3

ar4 ametok
the wien ROSi aM dc Arr LEAothe IWS1 aa eaa iodig torapkc

naps thftg ea oHbe aII Hth
Trangrit Load theddngsaImfqgotaIk
ea titw9 foe

aMfifl adyyd 11 1floS

ipobI lIte opeaon
dudts emetpny phone

zdMIIs
LEA

irdOuS Materi rinory AniuUy LEA

th reprn b7 fo fA
th opc4or Admuni1th Office by

hnlinw mOn

gz An7nr/rTfl

CEQA-Ol 5121



fd1rmkSOLID WASTE FACQITY PERMIT
17 LIAondft

The wth$t Mk
hdfr dIp pei rk2 de ot

Tb hHotp kI fl frne qprn
IteQuew Ak14

aU appSI
te pKc itiTh

with tI

njcoos
ord eici with jwWi this �ffiy

AJ npie yothjp the pret CGp deliLEwMfl repbiory tosp tsnd rmactlon

lft the meln
the 5ud ttporb Fit be dyveij0 t4

Mdito.l ma
the

Feitlty hfl be fumithJ upon tque to he LtA and theeypjThe opetg thall nFy the LEA ory ih roti
ot in cili lpth the pIn1n

nO thefl the oeratn
nes the oerjStkffihJ to th LEA said SObeFore

thatg re My liFichetees ai teunij by the woeIj mqulre to this petmmc LEA the ght to sjatdkr the o1Id we handlin erati at tht fecity wf emed fl.mssy thie 10 any

poentll heath haze4 ahdkrptihli

The tetm cOfld1rkj oFtM prmmay cl rci orpiic awte OeJlThb pe does elea the

undet other xttin taw ordlnan or 5taruttj othez
The load helngpm4ad theps nooIioring pro8r thali be intpjard mitain in the met rmnt and ep SLe1lpiedeqtate oai oet1e liter conro tccoHet acurnua ma lab Portable Iitttr 1�re wift be th wo4in

aid in the eorol

apped kOSL

Al1eme dally eybe used aCCd7ng ta�n egati end prby the LEA AOC� shah be rporbt the maat

Qeed ankaFssI be eomp1iy cej asson as possble er4 ate minmu the tnd hewig day incbaa olL Vocpair Mlow
rn

aels sti be dosited ey the dd and npy thed
the wcikJng4ay ind
Uted mttor ott oil l1att anhfreex end baeaties tan be accepted

only and ahali be Stornd
mennet not to creae

noisenc bazaal 0tvtol any other ppk tati orend rnpiny
shall heproatded eli

orenqJ thltk nHand rtbe
the reuds period of three yeare

CEQA-Ol 5122



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Ratify and approve payments to Southern Inyo Hospital 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the payment of two invoices, one being from a prior fiscal year, that total 
$15,015.86 to Southern Inyo Hospital for outpatient medical services for Inyo County inmates.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
We transported two inmates to receive services at Southern Inyo Hospital; one in June 2019 and one in October 
2020.  We have had a change in nurse staffing at the jail and the invoice from June 2019 was just approved 
by the supervising nurse and the Health Officer.   California State Penal Code 4011.10(b) determines that HHS is 
only permitted to reimburse costs for inmate health costs at a rate equal to 110% of the hospital's actual cost to 
charge ratio. Using data from the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development, we are only obligated to 
pay 73.02% of the base charges from Southern Inyo Hospital.  The total for the two invoices with the discount is  
$15,015.86.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny payment of this obligation, leaving a local hospital with unreimbursed costs to care for a 
local inmate.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Sheriff's Department
 
FINANCING:
Health Realignment funds. Funding for this is included in the Health budget. This will be paid for out of the Health 
Budget (045100), Professional Services (5265). No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 11/30/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/30/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/1/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/1/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 12/2/2020



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Rhiannon Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of a contract with the Tri-County Fairgrounds for indoor rental space to provide indoor 
COVID-19 testing. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and the 18th District Agricultural 
Association (Tri-County Fairgrounds) for the provision of indoor rental space to conduct Verily COVID-19 testing 
services in an amount not to exceed $500 per day, $26,000 total for the period of December 1, 2020, through 
March 31, 2021, and authorize the HHS Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In June 2020 Inyo County Health and Human Services, Public Health and Prevention Division facilitated the 
opening of two community-based drive through testing sites in order to expand COVID-19 testing for Inyo County 
residents, the staff and supplies are funded by the California Department of Public Health and operated in 
collaboration with Verily's ProjectBaseline COVID-19 Testing Program. To date, the sites have tested more than 
2,500 community members; providing a vital service that enables Inyo County to meet State mandated testing 
metrics which otherwise would be significantly more difficult to meet.

As the weather in Inyo County continues to reach lower temperatures, we feel that it is necessary to move the 
testing from a drive through model to a scheduled indoor model allowing for protection of the medical supplies, 
participants, and staff from the elements. The Tri-County Fairgrounds is able to guarantee the usage of their 
Tallman Pavilion and all necessary facilities through March 31, 2020. Because of these changes, we are asking 
to amend our Health budget to ensure their are funds in the rent object code.

We respectfully request your Board approve the ratification of the agreement between the County of Inyo and the 
18th District Agricultural Association (Tri-County Fairgrounds), and authorize the Health and Human Services 
Director, Marilyn Mann to sign.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny this request, likely resulting in Inyo County's inability to provide adequate 
sheltering for COVID-19 testing through the winter months.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Project Baseline - Verily
 
FINANCING:
COVID funding. This expense will be paid out of the Health budget (045100), Office, Space and Site Rental 
object code (5291).  No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County - Fairgrounds Facility Use Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 12/1/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/2/2020
Anna Scott Approved - 12/2/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 12/9/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/9/2020
Denelle Carrington New - 
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Marilyn Mann



DATE: 11/30/20 
AGREEMENT NO. RA-20-80 

Page | 1 

18TH District Agricultural Association – Eastern Sierra Tri-County Fairgrounds 
475 Sierra Street, Bishop, CA 93514 

(760) 873-3580 I info@tricountyfair.com 

 

INTERIM EVENT/BUILDING RENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS RENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is by and between the 18th District Agricultural Association, 
(“Association”), commonly known as the Tri-County Fairgrounds (“Fairgrounds”), and The Inyo 
County HHS (“Renter”). Association and Renter may be collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 
 
1. Association hereby grants to the Renter the right to occupy the space(s) known as The Tallman 
Pavilion, as depicted in Exhibit A, located on the Fairgrounds at 475 Sierra Street, Bishop, California 
93514 (“Premises”) for the purposes hereinafter set forth and subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 
 
2. The term of this Agreement begins on 12/01/20 and ends on 03/31/21. Renter shall guarantee the 
payment of any damage to Association property, removal of all property and the leaving of the 
Premises in the same condition in which Renter took possession. 
 
3. The purposes of occupancy shall be limited to COVID-19 Testing and Equipment Storage per the 
request of the Inyo County HHS. 
 
4. Renter shall pay Association the amount of $500 per day – testing schedule will be every M, W, 
TH (7A-1:30P). Payments should be made by cash, check or credit card. Upon execution of this 
Agreement, Renter shall pay the Association a deposit in the amount of $00.00 deposit waiver per 
Jen McGuire. The Association may retain from the deposit any amount necessary to remedy Renter 
defaults in the payment of rent, repair of damage to the Premises caused by Renter, or to clean the 
Premises upon Renter move-out if not left in the same condition in which Renter took possession. 
The deposit amount or balance, if any, and an itemized list of any deductions shall be returned to 
Renter no later than thirty (30) days. [Insert any specific cancellation policy regarding the return of 
the deposit.] 
 
5. Renter shall pay the following services and fees: $500 per day as stated above 
 
6. Renter acknowledges that the Association’s Fairgrounds may be required at any time, with limited 
advance notice, for the purpose of responding to an emergency declared by local, state, 
and/or federal governments. Association shall not be liable for any interference of Renter’s use 
or possession of the Premises or loss to or expenses incurred by the Renter or its subcontractors or 
patrons that may result from such emergency use of the Premises. 
 
7. Renter shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Association and the State of California, their 
officers, agents, servants and employees from any and all claims, causes of action and suits 
accruing or resulting from any damage, injury or loss to any person or persons, including all 
persons to whom the Renter may be liable under any worker’s compensation law and Renter 
him/herself and from any loss, damage, cause of action, claims or suits for damages, including but 
not limited to loss of property, goods, wares or merchandise, caused by, arising out of or in any 
way connected with the exercise by Renter of the privileges herein granted. 
 



DATE: 11/30/20 
AGREEMENT NO. RA-20-80 

Page | 2 

18TH District Agricultural Association – Eastern Sierra Tri-County Fairgrounds 
475 Sierra Street, Bishop, CA 93514 

(760) 873-3580 I info@tricountyfair.com 

 
8. Renter will conduct business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, 
tin cans, paper, etc., in receptacles provided by the Association within Premises for such purpose and 
will keep the area within and surrounding Premises free from all rubbish and debris. Renter will 
remove all biohazard waste.  All other waste may be deposited into dumpsters provided by the 
Association.  
 
9. All temporary tents or enclosures erected by Renter shall have the prior written approval of 
Association and local fire suppression authorities. Renter shall not affix any fixtures to the 
Premises without the written preapproval of the Association and if the removal of the fixture may 
be affected without injury to the Premises. 
 
10. Renter will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and 
requirements of applicable state and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the 
right and privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business 
whatsoever for which an exclusive privilege is sold by Association, nor engage in any other 
business whatsoever upon or within Premises or Fairgrounds, except that which is herein 
expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to the Premises and 
privileges provided in this Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Renter shall not 
include the carnival and the carnival area. 
 
11. Association will furnish necessary janitor service for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the 
public, but Renter must, at his/her own expense, keep the Premises and adjacent areas properly 
arranged and clean. All concessions must be clean, all coverings removed, and the concessions ready 
for business each day at least one hour before the Association is open to the public. Receptacles will 
be provided at several locations to receive Renter's trash, and such trash must not be swept into the 
aisles or streets or any public areas. 
 
12. Renter agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities in which money is used 
as a prize or premium, and that Renter shall not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons. Only straight merchandising methods shall be used and all 
methods of operations, demonstration and sale, shall be subject to the approval of the Association 
and the local law enforcement officials. 
 
13. Renter is entirely responsible for the Premises and agrees to reimburse Association for any 
damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds used in connection with the Premises, 
reasonable wear and tear excepted. Renter agrees to inspect the conditions of the Premises and of 
all property it will use on the Premises, including but not limited to equipment, furniture or other 
personal property owned by Association, and to be entirely responsible for the use of the Premises 
and such property. 
 
14. Association may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the 
property of Renters, but Association shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of 
Renter. 
 



DATE: 11/30/20 
AGREEMENT NO. RA-20-80 

Page | 3 

18TH District Agricultural Association – Eastern Sierra Tri-County Fairgrounds 
475 Sierra Street, Bishop, CA 93514 

(760) 873-3580 I info@tricountyfair.com 

 
15. Each and every article and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature 
must be removed from the Premises by Renter, at Renter’s own expense, upon expiration or earlier 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
16. No Renter will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages 
as defined in the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act unless Association authorizes Renter in writing and 
unless Renter holds a lawful license authorizing such sales on the Premises. 
 
17. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial relations must be 
strictly observed. 
 
18. Failure of Association to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or 
performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of 
any subsequent breach of any such term and condition. 
 
19. This Agreement shall be subject to termination by either party at any time prior to or during the 
term hereof by giving the other party notice in writing at least 30 days prior to the date when such 
termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the Association of any further 
performances of the terms of this agreement. 
 
20. The Association shall have the privilege of inspecting the Premises covered by this agreement at 
any time or all times. Association shall have the right to retain a key to the Premises and may enter 
with at least 24-hour written notice to Renter. 
 
21. Renter recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to 
property taxation and that Renter may be subject to the payment of property taxes levied on such 
interest. 
 
22. The Parties hereto agree that Renter, and any agents and employees of Renter, in the 
performance of this agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees 
or agents of Association. 
 
23. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this agreement, and the provisions of this 
Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties hereto. 
 
24. It is mutually agreed that this Agreement or the privileges granted herein, or any part thereof, 
cannot be assigned or otherwise transferred without the written consent of Association. Subleasing 
of the Premises is prohibited. 
 
25. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms of this contract 
shall be valid, unless made in writing and signed by the parties, hereto, and that no oral 
understandings or agreements not incorporated herein and no alterations or variations of the terms  
 



DATE: 11/30/20 
AGREEMENT NO. RA-20-80 

Page | 4 

18TH District Agricultural Association – Eastern Sierra Tri-County Fairgrounds 
475 Sierra Street, Bishop, CA 93514 

(760) 873-3580 I info@tricountyfair.com 

 
hereof, unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, shall be binding upon any of the 
Parties. 
 
26. In the event Renter fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this Agreement and its Exhibits 
referred to herein, all payments under this Agreement shall be deemed earned and non-refundable 
by Association, and Association shall have the right to occupy the Premises in any manner deemed 
for the best interest of Association. 
 
27. Renter shall abide by the additional terms and conditions indicated in the following Exhibits, 
attached to this Agreement and incorporated by these references: 
 
 
Map of Fairgrounds Depicting Premises      Exhibit A 
California Fair Services Authority Insurance Requirements    Exhibit B 
Rental Agreement         Exhibit C 
  
28. This Agreement is not binding upon Association until it has been signed by its authorized 
representative. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures on the date shown below. 
The signatories represent and warrant that they were duly authorized by their respective governing 
bodies to execute this Agreement and the Parties hereby agree to all the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement. 

 
INDIVIDUAL NAME BUSINESS NAME  
Address City, State Zip Phone Email 
Signature 
Title 
Date 
 
 
18th DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION  
475 Sierra Street, Bishop, CA 93514 
Signature 
Title: Jen McGuire - CEO 
Date 



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of December 1, 2020.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/7/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 12/7/2020



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  Ashley Helms 
 
SUBJECT:  Change Order Update Ordinance 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) waive further reading of the proposed ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Amending and Repealing Certain Sections of Title 11 of the Inyo 
County Code Related to Change Orders in Public Works Contracts;" and B) schedule enactment for 10:30 a.m. 
January 5, 2021 in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
It has recently come to the attention of Public Works that the Inyo County Code contains certain, very restrictive 
rules regarding change orders to public works contracts.  Specifically, Inyo County Code section 11.05.210 states 
that no change order to a public works contract may exceed $25,000 and section 11.05.220 requires Public 
Works to obtain Board approval for any change order over $4,000.  These two sections were enacted in 1984 
and have not been amended since, so the low monetary limits are likely due to these two sections being 
outdated.  

However, California Public Contract Code section 20142 provides much higher limits for change orders to public 
works contracts, and permits your Board to grant the Director of Public Works the authority to enter into change 
orders per the following formulas:

 For contracts less than $50,000 - Public Works Director may approve change orders less than $5,000
 For contracts between $50,000 and $250,000 - Public Works Director may approve change orders less 

than 10% of the contract amount
 For contracts greater than $250,000 - Public Works Director may approve change orders less than 

$25,000 plus 5% of the original contract amount, not to exceed $210,000
Public Works is therefore requesting that your Board modify section 11.05.210 to grant the Director of Public 
Works the full change order authority that is provided for in the Public Contract Code.  Public Works is also 
requesting that your Board repeal and delete section 11.05.220, as that section is no longer necessary given the 
modifications to section 11.05.210.

Rather than putting hard numbers in the County Code, Public Works is requesting that your Board instead 
reference the monetary limits from section 20142 within the County Code so that the County Code will 
automatically update should the state legislature modify section 20142.  This will hopefully help avoid a situation 
like the one we are remedying now, where a dollar figure set out in the County Code becomes outdated due to 
inflation and the passage of time.  



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Finally, Public Works is requesting that your Board remove the hard cap of $25,000 on any change orders, as it 
is often necessary to enter into change orders that exceed this hard cap given the cost of construction.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to keep the County Code as-is, but this is not recommended, as the extremely low 
limits for change orders require Public Works to constantly seek Board approval for change orders that, by 
today's dollars, are quite small.  Alternately, your Board could choose to set dollar limits in the County Code that 
are an increase from the current limits, but that are lower than what is set out in the Public Contract Code. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Change Order Update Ordinance
 
APPROVALS:
Grace Chuchla Created/Initiated - 12/7/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2020
Grace Chuchla Approved - 12/7/2020
Ashley Helms Approved - 12/8/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/8/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/8/2020



1

ORDINANCE NO. _______

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING AND REPEALING CERTAIN SECTIONS

 OF TITLE 11 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE RELATED
 TO CHANGE ORDERS IN PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS

The Board of Supervisors of Inyo County ordains as follows:

SECTION ONE. PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Ordinance is to update Sections 11.05.210 and 11.05.220 of the Inyo County 
Code to bring these sections in line with the California Public Contract Code.  

SECTION TWO. AUTHORITY.

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority given the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
by California Public Contract Code section 20142(a), which permits the Board of Supervisors to 
grant certain county officials the authority to order changes or additions to public works 
contracts.

SECTION THREE. MODIFICATIONS TO TITLE 11.

Section 11.05.210 of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended to read:

11.05.210 Contract change order authority granted to Public Works Director

Pursuant to Cal. Public Contract Code section 20142(a), the Director of Public Works, or 
his or her designee, is authorized to order changes or additions in the work being 
performed under public works contracts.  The dollar value of changes or additions 
authorized by the Director of Public Works shall not exceed the monetary limits set forth 
in Public Contract Code section 20142, as it may be amended from time to time.  
Changes or additions in excess of the monetary limits set forth in Public Contract Code 
section 20142 shall be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 

Section 11.05.220 of the Inyo County Code is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

SECTION FOUR. SEVERABILITY.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Board hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any 
portion of this Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.



2

SECTION FIVE. CEQA COMPLIANCE.

This ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and Section 15060(c)(3) (the activity is 
not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, because it has no potential for 
resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.) 

SECTION SIX. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.
Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this ordinance shall be 
published as required by Government Code Section 25124. The Clerk of the Board is hereby 
instructed and ordered to so publish this ordinance together with the names of the Board 
members voting for or against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of January, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
MATT KINGSLEY, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant
Assistant Clerk of the Board



County of Inyo

County Administrator & Sheriff
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

FROM:  CAO Clint Quilter, Sheriff Jeff Hollowell 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance Amending Inyo County Code Section 2.30.050, Which Defines the Veterans Service 
Function 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board enact a proposed ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California, Amending Section 2.30.050 of the Inyo County Code, Pertaining to the Qualifications, 
Appointment, and Compensation of the Veterans Service Officer."
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
After consultation between the Sheriff and County Administrator, it has been determined that a Veterans Service 
Representative is not currently adequate to meet the needs of our veteran community. The matter was discussed 
with the Board of Supervisors at its December 1 meeting and your Board concurred with the Sheriff and County 
Administrator that a full-time Veterans Service Officer position would better meet the needs of Inyo and Mono 
County Veterans. As discussed at the meeting, the position will allow for a higher level of responsibility and ability 
to act more independently which allows for a higher level of service.   

In support of the full-time Veterans Service Officer proposal, the Board on December 1 approved the job 
description for the position and a change in the authorized strength of the Sheriff's Department, and authorized 
the open recruitment and hiring of a full-time Veterans Service Officer at Range 78.

The Board also directed staff to bring forward for approval an ordinance to amend Inyo County Code Section 
2.30.050, pertaining to the qualifications, appointment, and compensation of the Veterans Service Officer.  The 
ordinance was presented at the Board's December 8 meeting, at which time the Board waived further reading 
and set enactment for 10:30 a.m. Tuesday, December 15. 

Among other things, the ordinance provides for a full time Veterans Service Officer as opposed to providing a 
Veterans Service Officer stipend, for the Board to appoint the Veterans Service Officer, as is currently the case, 
and while leaving the position in the Sheriff's Department, providing for the Board or its designee to provide 
administrative support and direction.  The ordinance also maintains the requirement (consistent with state law) 
that the Veterans Service Officer be a "veteran" as defined by Section 980 of the Military and Veterans Code.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose not to enact the ordinance, or may direct staff to make changes.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft Ordinance Amending 2.30.050
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/8/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 12/8/2020
Clint Quilter Approved - 12/8/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 12/9/2020



Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. ________

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 
INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 2.30.050 OF THE INYO 
COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE QUALIFICATIONS, APPOINTMENT, 

AND COMPENSATION OF THE VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER

WHEREAS, Section 970(a) of the California Military and Veterans Code provides that 
the “board of supervisors of each county may, but is not required to, appoint, prescribe 
the qualifications of, and fix the compensation of an officer to be titled ‘county veterans 
service officer;’” and

WHEREAS, Inyo County has a veterans service officer, as described more fully in 
Chapter 2.30 of the Inyo County Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to modify certain details of the position’s appointment, 
qualifications, and compensation (set forth in Section 2.30.050 of the Inyo County Code);  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as 
follows:

SECTION I:  Section 2.30.050 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to 
read as follows:

“A.   Any person appointed as the veterans service officer shall have the following 
qualifications:

    1.    Shall be a veteran as defined by Section 980 of the Military and Veterans Code;
    2.    Be or become a full-time permanent employee of the Inyo County sheriff’s 
department.
B.   The veterans service officer shall be appointed by (and report to) the board of 
supervisors or its designee. 
C.    The veterans service officer’s duties shall be those set forth in Military and Veterans 
Code Section 970 et seq., and the ordinance codified in this section.” 

SECTION II: EFFECTIVE DATE
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days 

after its adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this 
Ordinance shall be published as required by Government Code Section 25124.  The Clerk 
of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish this Ordinance together with 
the names of the Board members voting for and against same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS __ DAY OF ________, 2020.

AYES:



Page 2 

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

_______________________________
Matt Kingsley, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:
Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By:______________________________________
        Darcy Ellis, Assistant



Board of Equalization AGENDA                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         December 15, 2020 

 

County of Inyo 
Board of Equalization 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 

 

December 15, 2020 
  

   

11:30 a.m. 1. MINUTE APPROVAL – Request approval of the minutes of the Board of Equalization meeting 
of May 19, 2020. 

 
 2.  STIPULATION AGREEMENTS – Request Board:  

A) waive late fee penalties applied to Assessment Appeal Nos. 2020-08 and 2020-09; and  
B) approve the stipulation agreements for the following: 

 Assessment Appeal No. 2020-08, concerning Assessor Parcel No. 5590120140 
and submitted by Coso Energy Developers; and  

 Assessment Appeal No. 2020-09, concerning Assessor Parcel No. 5590120170 
and submitted by Coso Power Developers. 

 

 3. ADJOURN 

 



 

Board of Equalization MINUTES                                                                                                                   1                                                                                                               May 19, 2020    

 

County of Inyo 
Board of EQUALIZATION 

 

 

May 19, 2020 
 
The Board of Equalization of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 1:00 p.m., on 
Tuesday, March 19, 2020, in the Board of Supervisors Room, at the County Administrative Center, in Independence, 
with the following Board Members present in person and/or via teleconference at the May Street Conference Room in 
Bishop: Supervisor Matt Kingsley, presiding, Dan Totheroh, Jeff Griffiths, Rick Pucci, and Mark Tillemans. Also present: 
County Administrator Clint Quilter, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Assistant County Counsel John Vallejo, and 
Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis. 
 
Approval of Minutes Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve the minutes of the Board 

of Equalization meeting of March 17, 2020. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Oaths  
 

The Assistant Clerk of the Board administered oaths to all parties planning to provide testimony during 
the hearing. 
 

Assessment Appeal 
Denied – No. 2020-
05/APN 029-030-01 
(Wilkinson) 
 
 

Regarding Assessment Appeal Application No. 2020-05, for Assessor’s Parcel Number 029-030-01, 
filed by Gavin Wilkinson, the Board heard testimony from Mr. Wilkinson in which he objected to the 
valuation of his property. The Board also heard from Real Property Appraiser Allison Krohn explaining 
the assessment, and from Assistant County Counsel John Vallejo representing the Assessor’s Office. 
Vallejo said the appellant had neither submitted valid evidence (actual appraisals) nor met his burden 
of proof. Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to accept into evidence 
exhibits from both parties except those not considered valid appraisals. The Board continued 
deliberations and directed County Counsel Rudolph to prepare Findings of Fact with Mr. Wilkinson’s 
appeal denied. (SEE ATTACHED FINDINGS OF FACT.)  
 

Adjournment 
 

The Chairperson adjourned the Board of Equalization meeting at 2:24 p.m. 

 

 
 
 

 
__________________________________ 

       Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Equalization 
 

Attest:   C L I N T  G .  Q U I L T E R  

         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d  

 

        

  by:       _____________________________________ 

                           Darcy Ellis, Assistant 



BOE-305-AH (Pl) REV 08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICAT]ON
This form contains all of the requesls for information
lhat are required for liling an application for changed
assessmenl. Fallure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should bs prepared to submil additional
information if requested by the assessor or at lhe time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may rosult in the
continuance of the hearing or denial of the appeal. Do not
attach hearlng evldence to this application.

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of tlie Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

1, APPLICANT INFORMATION - PLEASE PRINT
OF (us-t F/R$I OR 

'RUSTNAAIF
EI/lAILADDRESS

J
APPLICANT o.BoE

o
CITY FAX

2, CONTACT INFORMATION - AcENT, ATTORNEY, OR RELATIVE OF APPLIGANT if applicable - {REFRESENTATION lS oFTIONAL)

NAME OFAGENT, OR RELATIVF (I A.SI FIRST MIODLE INITIAL]-

5 r,f m
NAME LLT

CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER THANABOVE (IASf, F/FST MIDDTE INTIIALI

{ t'

Clork Use

0
Only

v-0

cl
STATE ZIPCODE IDAYTIMETELE

q l{7-l kt*l'il,Y -ttoo
ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

(-roo) ?e}:' fitf

4DDF€SS BOX'P.

o

3. PROPERTY INFORMATION

fl Yes F No ls this property a single-family dwelling thal is occupled as lhe principal place of residenco by lhe owner?

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER {if appllcable)

TELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (if applicable)

SSae
DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA), if appropriate

L
PROPERTY TYPE

I SINGLE-FAMILY / CONDOMTNIUM / TO\ NHOUSE / DUFLEX

ff tr,tut-tr-rRutLy/ApARTMENTS: No. oF uNl-rs 

-
Etr colalarRctAUrNDUsrRtAL

E BUSTNESS PERSONAL PROPERTYIFIXTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

I MPROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERTY (soe htstruo{ions)

MINERAL RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

fl eentcultunRL

I unuurncruRED HoME

I WATERCRAFT I AIRCRAFT

n possessoRY TNTERES'I

fl vRcRrurmruo

n orsEn:

C, APPEALS BOARD USE ONLY

!,i+ :r'l

TOTAL

q 3sz-7
DAYTIME TELEPHONE

t8
TELEPHONE

(

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT tr AUTHORIZATION ATTACHED
The following lnformatlon must be complet6d {or atlached to this appllcation - see instructions) unless the agent ls a licensed California
attorney as indlcated in the Certiflcation seetion, ar a spause, child, parent, reglsterad domestic partne, 6r the person affected. lf the
applicant is a business enfu, the agent's authorizatlon musf be sigre d hy an oflicer ar authorized employee af fhe business.

The person named in S€ctlon 2 above ls hereby autharized to act aE my agetft ln this application, and may inspect assessor's records,
g enter lg*elpu,atlon agreemenfs, and ofherwise setfle r'ssues relaling to this appllcation,

DATE r t
€/,t/zal/, r-a-

TITTE

#tnr, De,tT

applicable)

o
ASSESSMENT NUMBER (if

ot

A. VALUE ON ROLL B, APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

r'
9l r^:r#.t#8
].1' r 4,":'zqu

Atz (?S

.s9 vse. qLu
,f J, :+ r t"tb3

PENALTIES or

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-305-AH (P2) REV. 08 (01-15)

5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED ff Cnecn onty one. See insfru ctlons for filing perlods

S necumn ASsESSMENT - vALUE As oF JANUARY 1 oF THE cURRENT YEAR

n supptpllENTAL ASSESSMENT
*DATE OF NOTICE: ROLLYEAR:

fl Rol-tOHANGE I EScAPEASSESSMENT ! 6ALAM;TYREASSESSMENTI PENALTYA$SESSMENT

"DATE OF NOTICE: **ROLL YEAR:
*Must attaeh copy of nolice or bilt, where appllcable **Each rol! Vear requlres a separafe anplicatian

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS) See insfroclion s before complethtg this sectlon,

lf you are uncertain of which item to check, please check'1. OTHER- and provide a brief explanation of your reasons forfiling this application'

The reasons that I rely upon to support tequested changes itt value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

I The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of the current year.

B. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

[ 1. No change in ownership occurred on the date of 

-.

fl 2. Base year value for the change in ownership established on the date of _-- is incorrect.

C. NEWCONSTRUCTION

[ 1. No new construction occured on the date of

f]2.Baseyearvalueforthecompletednewconstructionestablishedonthedategf-isincorrect'
[ 3. Value of construction in progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D. CALAMITY REASSESSMENT

! Assessor's reduced value is incorrect for property damaged by misfortune or calamity,

E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES, Assessor's value of porsonal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value.

[ 1. All personal propefty/fixtures.

[ 2. Only a portion of the perconal propertylfixtures. Attach description of those items.

F. PENALryASSESSMENT

[J Penalty assessment is not justified.

G. CLASSIFICATION/ALLOCATION

n 1, Classlfication of property is incorrect.

[ 2. Allocation of value of property is inconect (e.9., between land and improvements)'

H. APPEAL AFTER AN AUDII Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.

[ 1. Amount of escape assessment is incorrect.

[ 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect.

I. OTHER
p Explanation (attach sheet if necessary)

T.WRITTEN FINDINGS OFFACTS{$l-60 pff parcel )
p Arerequested. I Are notrequested.

B. THIS APPLIC,ATION IS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND SOE 
'NSfTOC''ONS'FYes tr No

CERTIFICATION

I ceftify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the |aws of lhe State af California that the foregoing and all infarmation hereon, including any

aecompanylng stalements or documents, ls true, correct, and complete to the best of ny knowledge and belief and that I am (1) the owner of the

propedy or the person affected (i.e., a person having a direcl economlc interest in the payment of taxes on that prapedy -"The Applicanf'), (2) an

agent authorized by the applicant under ltem 2 of this application, or {3) an attornoy licensed to practice law in the State of Callfornla, State Bar

Number who has been retained by lhe applicant and has been authoized by that person to file this appllcattort.

t-7 L*

, "t zzPtlta /{" {t*t J
FITING $TATUS (IOENTIFY RELAfIONSHIPTOAPPLICANT NAMED IN SECTION 1)

ff [ o*u* [ AGENr I erronruev f] spousE I neersreneo DoMESnc eARTNER I ct'lt-o I PARENT l] PERsoNAFFEoTED

E coRponArs oFFtcER oR DESTGNATED EMPIoYEE

W*W"qulred 
or p'Fer'tiled appllcatlonl I sroruenat (cry srerr)

I 6t" Ju^,.-ns*).(4



0s0
August 24,2020

lnyo County Assessot
PO Box "J"
Independence, CA 93526

Sompany

Srnof,
firt

Rer Addendum to Assessment Aptteal Aptslication With Resaect to Aceoant
Numbers 5590120140 and 559A12A174

To Whom it May Concern:

Coso Geothermal Power Holdings, LLC, aDelaware limited liability conpany is in receipt

of the 2A20-2021 Inyo County Unsecured Property Tax Bills for the fiscal year of July 1, ?,A20

tln'ough June 30, 2021 (the "Tax Bills"), attached hereto as Exhibit A, for the fbllowing
subsidiaries: Coso Power Developels and Coso Bnergy Developers (collectively, the "Cosct

Companies"). The Tax Bills will be partially paid under plotest prior to August 31,2020.

After thorough leview, on behalf of the Coso Companies we hereby oppose the Tax Bills
in their entireties on the grounds that the County of Inyo in the State of California (the "County")
has inappropriately assessed and levied, ancl will have enuneously collected, property taxes for the

year July 1,2020 ttuough June 30, 2021 from Coso Companies (the "Tax Year''). Concurrently

herewith the Coso Companies have submitted the Assesstnent Appeai Applications attached hereto

as Exhibit B, and flre Coso Cornpanies hereby and tlrereby petition the Inyo County Board of
Equalization for reassessment of their property value for the Tax Year pursuant to applicable

provisions of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

On July 29,202},Inyo County issued the Tax Bills for the Tax Year stating that the

aggregate value of the Coso Cornpanies' propetties in Inyo County with respect to the Tax Bills
numbered 58004 and 58006 is $198,969,268. This valuation greatly exceeds the rnaximum

increase in annual assessment of 2% under the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

Due to the discrepancy in the property tax valuation and in recognition of the time and

costs involved for all parties to fully administer this matter at both the County level and, if
necessaly, in any subsequent state court proceedings, the Coso Companies would be willing to

discuss and enter into an appropriate settlement with the County Assessor, if such applopliate
settlement terms oan be mutually agreed to.

If the county is unwilling to participate, the Coso Companies reserve their rights to request

an opporlunity to appear before the County Assessment Appeals Board at an oral hearing on

alleged excesses in the Coso Companies' Tax Yeal property value. The Coso Companies

respectfuily request that its hearing be closed to the public at time when the Company discloses or

address confidential or proprietary business infonnatiou, in accotdance with the liolding in
General Arnerican Transportation Corp, t. State Baard af Eclualization, 193 Cal.App'3d 1175

(1957). The Coso Companies request that written Findings of Fact be issued in support of any

decision onthe Coso Companies' petition.

P.O. Box 1690. lnyokern, California93527 " tel 760-764-1300



Please contact Joe Greco at77 5-376-9702 or Chris Ellis at 76A-764- 1300 x 207 ,to initiate
such discussions,

Very

Ellis

Vice President and General Manager



I,,MN

Prope.ty Data; 5590120140

Alisha McMurtrie, Trsasurer - Tax collector

P.o, Dtawer o

IndepEndence, cA 93526

Telcphone: {750} 879 0312

LSE CACA1 1402 POR T22S R39E CA

ANNUAT
UNSECURED PROPERTV TAX BILL

For Fiscal Year JulY 1,2020
. through June 30,202X

60 poparlEt6 with o!r noif E'Silling fsrturel is{ !i!ll our va€biirg (llck

rftc f-BillliB link.od ua lhe loilowlng f-ollllng tntollh.nt Code lo

rrcelvc t(l0r€ tax bllls nn lhlt .sssilm.nl nuobet vl! emall' Vou'

ln.dllmenl cod€ lrt507.

IMPORTANT ME$SAGES

ONtINE fAx PAYMENl-ow AvAtU!!t! H6veyour blll.etdy and vitit

ww.inyocololy.drf toxcoll!ctot

IMPORTAI{T II.IFORf$ANSH ON REI'ER8g SIDE

Address:

Malled lo; COSO ENERGY DEVELOPERS - LSEE

DBA BLM EAST & WEST

PO BOX 1690

INYOKERN CA S3527

llrlrrtlltrlrlrlrlrllrlllrlirll

TAXIN(] AOENEIES FOR INFORMATlON CALL AITIOUNT

lOl.CAUFORNIA NET TAXABLE VALUS 9522,4',11 32

the Aisesee on thc ll€tr'dEtG prlrled tlter "A!:s!r€e{r}riflu0r? 16t" l{ lhc box 
'bovs 

l! t6tlerlibls

lqt lhs prtmstrt o! lhl! blll' 5a18, rcmorrlqtdls8o5ol otlhtt plolctt,, sftGt lhc ll€n'dst€ doer qol

rsllsve the AtrF ts ollhs tar llablllfy'

otr N.gSSlgI-gAlgZg, I 4.rllflcste of llcn mav bB record€d agalnrt lhe AtrelleE and a recording

fee wlll be rdd6d lo th€.mountdue. lt{6 llEN MAY A$tCf YOUI{&EOn RAflNG, We do not acc6pt

p!rtl€l Faymant!,

Addltlonrl peoaltlerslll begln to accru6 on thc flrtt d.y of each monlh, boginrlog on l{g!gI&g!.g:-

2s3a.

Other snlarcemont qqtlont tnay ln.lud6:

A, S€lrtre snd srle at personal property, lmprovedertt or potteisory inletetts

8. sult for thc.mouotduE plur olhor chartes,

A:i$smonl Nu$b€r Blll Nombcr Blll Ported Dolc 'l'rx Rsle Arer

5590120140 58004 07-31-2020 059012

A$c$ca(g) J[nurry lrl,2010 "Et 01" NcElr ollter orvners ale pr€sinl oll this parccl

COSO ENERGY OTV€IOPIRS . LST€

Land

6lauctures

Tredo Fixts(€s

Tt6ss & viilss

Businoss Personal Proporty

Nel Valuo

$0

$91,028.188

573,842,296

$0

t613,675

s92,241,763

T6x Rals Per $10O Valuo

Taxas

r.00000

9922,417.62

$0.00Spscial Assessmenls & Fixod Chargss

Iotal Sase Tsx Amount $s22,4fi.A2

fl€t 0u!

Add r0r1

paa!l!yifler

Auglrl lI,1020

$922,41?.62

tolrl 0ue $922,417.82

All ques{lons aboul orvnership, vRhes or property

slotemcnls mus( bc tlirec(td loi

DnYc Stattlsmyrc, Asscssor

Address: P.O. DrarverJ, lrdcperdencc, CA 93526

Tel6photre: (760) 878'0302

FtrN: (760) 8?8.0307

Website: htlps:l/wrvrv,inyoeounly.us/scrvic€s/assessor

E"mail: iuyoaslcssor@inycolnty.us



BOE-305-AH (Pl) REV. o8 (01-15)

ASSES$MENT APPEAL APPLICATION
This form contains all of the tequests for information
that are required for liling an application for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this applicalion may
result in rejection of the application and/or denlal of ihe
appeal, Applicanls should be prepared to submit additional
informstion if requested by th6 asse$sor or at the tima of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessgry may result in lhe
continuance of the hearing or denial of the appeal. Do not
attach hearing evidence to this application.

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT
NAME OFAPPLICANT F/RST 8US/lrESq OR ISUSrIV M€

ADDRESS OFAPPUCANI (SIREEIADDFESS ORE O. 8O})

Mail to: lnyo County Clork of the Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) B7B-0373

ADDRESS

FAX TETEPHONE
O" B" o

NAME

PERSON IF OTHER THAN ABOVE (I,4SI F/RST, MIDDLE INTITALI

()
2. CONTACT INFORMATION - AcEf{T, ATTORNEY, OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT if applicable - (REPRESENTATION lS OPTIONAL}

NAME AGENl OR RELATIVE (IASI FIRST MIDDLE INITIALT EMAILADDRESS

{l C'e,; A

LLC

D- 0q
APPLICATION NUMBER: Clerk Use Only

ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

ftt*\ Jd;ril I
STATE

(A qr s"1
ZIP CODE

( zt*) ?&V-lrca
DAYTIME TELEPIIONE

MATLTNG ADDRESS (SIREE].ADORFSS OR P. O. BOX

CITY

o

3. PROPERTY INFORMATION

U yes F tto ls this proparty a single-family dwelling that is occupi€d as the principal place of residence by the owner?

TELEPHONE

ACcOUNT NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (lf applicabl€)

5
DoING BUSINESS As (DBA), if appropriate

ASSE$SOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (if applicable)

PROPERTYTYPE

fl S|NGLE-FAMTLYt CONDOMIN|UM /TOWNHOUSE I DUPLEX

f] Nulrt"reutLy/ApARTMENTs: No. oF uNtrs --_
ffi couruencrAurNDusrRtAl

F BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES

4. VALUE

I AGRICULTURAL

I IuRxurncruRED HoME

N WATERCRAFT f] AIRCRAFT

! possessoRvINTEREST

! vncaNrLANto

I orl,t€R: "-: i

APPEALS

LAND 1,_J t i

I M PROVEMENTS/STRUCTU RES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERTY (seo inslructions)

MINERAL RIGHTS

TREES &VINES

OTHER

TOTAL

c4
STATE

? s{ z-,
ZIF CODE lneyrrue relreHorue 

I 
nlrrnrurtre teleenonr

l(too) ?bv r Spc. l(zso )'16 z s n G

followlng lnformation must he completed (or attached to thls appllcation - see instructions) untess the agent is a licensed
attorney as indlcated ln the Certlftcatlon section, or a spouse, child, parent, registercd domostlc partner, or tlte person affected. lf

Is a business en the agent's authorlzation musl be

OFAGENT N AUTHoRIZATIoN ATTACHED

offhe business.an officer or authorized

named in Secfion 2 above is hereby authorlzed ta act as my agent ln this applleatlon, and may lnspect assessot's records,

1 enter in str4,ltlption agrcemants, and othetwise setfle issues relatlng to thls appllcation.
Ihe person

8 /,-, 1z<t
DATE,:*'WWK'O' 

YY* 
EMPLOYEE

P*rt,,,r^r?-d,r

ASSESSMENT NUMBER (if applicable)

S{?otzo I'tfJ"

B. APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUEA. VALUE ON ROLL

teL t<f.tA*
f;{ tal' t 33

{q}.21 I

t at* 7e1 s0{ f.lf.qt'?"r.t{
PENALTIES (amount or percent)

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-305-AH (P2) REV 08 (01-15)

5, TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED ff Cft eck only one.ses insfru/ctiorl s forflling petiods

EI nesulen AssFSsMENT - vALUE AS oF JANUARY 1 oF THE cURRENT YEAR

I supplerrlENTAL ASSESSMENT
-DATE OF NOTICE: ROLLYEAR:

fl nollcHANGE fl EscApEAssEssMENT tr cALAMtTyREASSE5SMENTn PENALTYASSESSMENT

"DATE OF NOTIGE: ."ROLLyEAR:
*Must attach copy af notiee or bill, whare applicable **Each roll vear requlres a separate apnlicatlon

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS) See instructions before complotitrg fhis secfion.

lf you are uncertain of which item to check, please check "1. OTHER" and provide a brief explanalion of your reasons forfiling this application'

The reasons that I rely upon to support reguested changes in value are as follows:

A, DECLINE IN VALUE

n The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of the current year.

B. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

[ 1, No change in ownership occured on the date of

[ 2. Base year value for the change in ownership established on the date of _.-- is incorrect.

C. NEWCONSTRUCTION

[ 1. No newconstruction occurred on the date of

f}2,Baseyearvalueforthecomplotednewconstructionestablishedonthedateof-isincorrect,
[ 3. Value of conskuction in progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D. CALAMITY REASSESSMENT

fl Assessor's reduced value is incorrect for property damaged by misfortune or calamity.

E, BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value'

tr 1, All porsonal propertylfixtures.

[ 2. Only a portion of the personal property/fixtures. Attach description of lhose items.

F. PENALTYASSESSMENT

fl Penalty assessmont is not justified,

G. CLASSIFICATION/ALLOCATION

[ 1. Classification of property is inconect.

[ 2. Allocation of value of propefty is incorrect (e.9., between land and improvements).
H. APPEALAFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.

[ 1. Amount of escape assessment is incorrect,

fl 2. Assessment of other property of the
I. OTHER

fl Explanation (attach sheet if necessary) bt* 'z+&

assessee at the location is incorrect.

fu*se {erEa zu lert* Anur'n , F*n
7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS ( $169 per parcel )

p nre requested. I Are not requested.

B. THISAPPLICATION IS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND SEE iNSfru,C'iONS.

pYes tr No

CERTIFICATION

t cerlify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the Stata of California that the foregoing and all infomation hareon, inclucllng any

accompanying statements or dacuments, is true, conect, and complete to the heat of my knowledge and belief and that I am (1) the owner of the

propefty ar the person affected (i.e., a person having a direct economlc lnterest in the payment of laxes on that property *"The Applicanf'), (2) an

agent aulhorized by the applicant under attorney licensetl to praclice law in tha State of Califarnia, Sfafe Bar

Number who has bas been authorized by that person to flle thts appllcation.
Iten 2 of this applicatian, or (3) an
be6n retainad by the applicant and

SIGNEDAT

I
srAlE)

04
on papor-fl1€d appllcrtionl

#
NAME (Plgiso Print)

(uftr t rv?tt"A /q" f,r,rl
FILINC STATUS (lDENTIFY RELATION$HIPTOAPPLICANI NAMED IN $ECTION 1}

ff tr n*r* [ eoetr n ATToRNEv fl spousE I REGTsTERED DoMEslc rARTNER f] cutr-o fl renrrur ! RrRson arnecren

[N conRonnre oFFtcER oR DESTGNATED EMPLoYEE



August 24,2020
GumFny

Sttn 
U fir't

Inyo County Assessor
PO Box "J"
Independence, CA 93526

Re: Addendum to Assessment Apttesl Application With Respect tg Account
Numbers 559Ail0140 and 5590120170.

To Whom itMay Concern:

Coso Geothermal Power Holdings, LLC, aDelaware limited liability conrpany is in receipt

of the 2A20-202L Inyo County Unsec.ured Property Tax Bills fol the fiscal yeat' of July 1,2020
through June 30, 202I (the "Tax Bills'), attached hereto as Exhibit A, for the fbllowing
subsidiaries: Coso Power Developers and Coso Energy Developers (collectively, the "Cosct

Companies"). The Tax Bills will be partially paid undel protest plior to August 37,2020.

After thorough review, on behalf of the Coso Companies we hereby oppose the Tax Bills
in theil entireties on the grounds that the County of Inyo in the State of California (the "County')
has inappropriately assessed and levied, and will have erroneously collected, property taxes for the

year July 1,2020 ttu'ough June 30, 2021 from Coso Companies (the "Tax Year'). Concurently
herewith the Coso Companies have submitted the Assessment Appeal Applications attached hereto

as Exhibit B, and the Coso Cornpanies hereby and tlrereby petition the Inyo County Board of
Equalization for reassessment of their propelty value for the Tax Yeat' pursuant to applicable
provisions of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

On July 29,2020,Inyo County issued the Tax Bills for the Tax Year stating that the

aggregate value of the Coso Companies' properties in Inyo County with respect to the Tax Bills
numbered 58004 and 58006 is $198,969,258. This valuation greatly exceeds the rnaximum
increase in annual assessment of 2% under the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

Due to the discrepancy in the property tax valuation and in recognition of the time and

costs involved for all parties to fully administer this matter at both the County level and, if
necessaty, in any subsequent state court proceedings, the Coso Companies would be willing to

discuss and enter into an apprcpriate settlement with the County Assessor, if such appropriate

settlement terms can be rntrtually agreed to.

If the county is unwilling to participate, the Coso Companies resetve their rights to tequest

an opportunity to appeal before the County Assessment Appeals Board at an oral hearing on

alleged excesses in the Coso Companies' Tax Year property value, The Coso Companies

respectfully request that its hearing be closed to the publio at time when the Company discloses or
address confidential or praprietary business infonnation, in accordance with the holding in
General American Transportation Corp, v. State Board of Eclualization, 193 Cal.App'3d 1175

(19S7). The Coso Conpanies request that written Findings of Fact be issued in support of any

decision on the Coso Companies' petition.

P,O. Box 1690. lnyol<ern, California 93527 . tel 760-764-1300



Please contact Joe Greco at 775-376-97A2 or Chris Ellis at76A-764-1300 x 207,to initiate
such discussions.

Very

Ellis

Vice President and General Manager



7nsffiN

Propsdt Oalai 6590120'170

Alirha McMurlrle, Tteasure, - Tax collector

P,o, Drawero

lndspenden6€, cA 93526

Telephone: ll60J 8?8'0312

PI LANO NWC GEOTHERMAL CA

ANNUAL
UNSECURED PROPERTY TAX BItt

For Fiscal Year JulY 1'' 2AZA

through June 3A,2O2l

Go Frrerler, wilh our n.rq f'Blll,ng laalurel ruil elth out v/*bdh, clitt

rh! a-Sllllng lln*.nd ure lhe lollorelng t"Bllling gnrollm€nl Code ld

raa!fue t[lura tar bllb otr thlg attotlment 0!f,1'6t vle omril lolt

fnrollm.ntcode 13 Sslo

IMPORTANT iIIESSAGES

ONLINa TAX PAYMtNfS NOW AVAIIAALEI Hnvs Vou' bill ready and vl5lt

ww.invdountv ue/ttrcollector'

IIIIPORTANT INFOFN'IATIO}I ON REVER$€ SIDE

Addrersi

M.llad to: COSO POWER DEVELOPERS

DBA NAVY II

FO BOX 16S0

INYOKERN CA 93527

lltltrtrllrrlrlrtrlrllrrtlllrrll

Asrrssment Number Slll Nurnl*r Blll Poslcd D$lt Tnx Rrlc Are8

5590120170 s8006 07-31.2020 0s9012

A.!scc!ee(6) Jotrunry lst, 2010 'Et nl" tneans othcr orvners uo prcscnl on (his psrccl

COSO POWEfi DEVEI.OPEfiS

The alscagsa on tbs llrn.drts ltlnled afls "As33l!os{ttJ!nulry trt" ltrlh€ lox abss8 htstpodrlblo

lor ths paymlrtdtttltill' Itla, tomoval oa dltpolrl ollhie ptopeltY st16t lhe lldn'dste dNr not

tsllila lh! Alt.slts oflhs |tr Iablllly'

Otr Novombe.02, 2O?O. o cortlflctte of lier m&y be recorded l8alntt ths AsJeliee atrd 
' 

racordlne

fe€wlllbgaddcd!otheamountdue,Tl{Etl€NMAYA'f.crYoURcnt0'lRAr|N6.Wcdonotac.ept
p6rti6l paymentr.

Addlilonrl psniltler wlll b88ln to a6cfoa on the firut drv of cach month, beginolng dn l$ggilbgllq?!

2020.

Other lnforcement rctloni miy lncludc:

A.58hu19 rnd !sl€ ol personal Propsrtyi lmp.ovementi gl po3setso'Y loterslts'

B,sult ror lhe amoqnl due plus other chatg€t'

91,067,275.04

'Ot.CALIFORNIA 
NET TMASLg VALUE

Lsnd

Slrucluros

Trade Flxtures

Troes & Mnes

Busins$ Personal PIoPortY

Nel Valus

$0

t106,'t35,234

$84,661,339

t0
$592,271

$106,727,505

T8x Rate P6r 0100 value

Taxo$

t.00000

91,St,275.04
$0.00Spaclal Assessments & FlxeJ Chargg$

Tot€l Base Tox Amounl $1,067,275.04

Nel Dlr
Ad'l rdl
pcnrltyrher

Aug!5t 31,2020

$1,067.275.04

Iolal Due $1.067,275,04

All qucations llbout orvncrshlp' valucs or uroperty

stlt€mellts mu$t Ite dir€ct€d toi

Dove StoltletnYtc, Assessor

Adrtcss: F,O, Drlwer J, lnelcperdence. CA 93526

Telcphonc: (?60) 878.0302

Fnx: {760) 878-0307

Vcbsite: htlpsy'Avrvrv.inyocoullty'!yscryiceshsscssor

Elnail : irryoasscssor@itryocotrnty.us



 
  

   

 Consent Departmental Correspondence Action  Public Hearing 

 Scheduled Time for 11:30  Closed Session  Informational  
 

 

FROM: Dave Stottlemeyre, County Assessor 
 

FOR THE BOARD MEETING:  December 15, 2020 

 
SUBJECT:  Coso Geothermal Assessment Appeal Application Nos. 2020-08 and 2020-09 
 

  

ASSESSOR RECOMMENDATION:  
1. Request Board waive late fee penalties; and  

 2. Approve the stipulations for Assessment Appeal Application numbers 2020-08 and 2020-09 

 

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:   
Important background information and any other additional facts the Board might need in rendering a decision. This is 
also where you will want to make justifications for sole-source declarations, and in the case of bid awards, list all bids 
received. These items come to your board as a package stipulation.  A denial of a recommended action(s) will require a 
contested hearing for these applications.   

1. The Late Fee Penalty. 
A late fee penalty was applied to the applications in question pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code section 
463.  Pursuant to section 463, if the assessee establishes to the satisfaction of the county board of equalization 
that the failure to file the property statement was due to reasonable cause and circumstances beyond the 
assessee's control, and occurred notwithstanding the exercise of ordinary care in the absence of willful neglect, it 
may order the penalty abated.  Staff recommends the Board make the required findings to waive the penalty 
based on the following: 
 
Our office historically sends out the various business property statements at the beginning of each year for our 
business property taxpayers to complete and return to us.  This year was different due to a new software system 
and due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations.  Our new software wasn’t functioning 
properly and our forms had to be printed by our vendor at the last minute.  Not all forms were printed, and 
therefore not all forms were sent to our taxpayers.  In this case, the taxpayer did not receive from us the BOE 
501-C’s and it went unnoticed until we began our work on the accounts in October.  Because of the above, and 
because this issue is part of a global agreement, the Assessor recommends that this penalty be waived. 
 

2. The Stipulations As To Value: 
The valuation of the properties in question are more specifically discussed in the BOE 305 forms accompanying 
this agenda item.  The stipulations make adjustments to the enrolled values, but do not result in a refund being 
owed to the tax payer. 

 

      

ALTERNATIVES:  The Board of Equalization could deny the requests and set a contested hearing for a future date.  

In order for the hearing to be scheduled within the 2 year statute of limitations, the hearing must be held no later than 
August 25, 2020. 
 

 

      AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
                 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                        COUNTY OF INYO 

For Clerk’s Use Only: 
AGENDA NUMBER 

  

 














	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT  (Join meeting via Zoom here)

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL &ndash; ANTICIPATED 
	3. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT – Pursuant to Government Code §5
	4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Pursu

	 Open Session
	5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	9. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	10. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	11. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	12. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	13. Request Board: A) declare ConFab Manufacturing of
	Agenda Request Form

	14. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2020-47 title
	Agenda Request Form
	Jail Roof Sealing Project - Notice of Completion and Resolution

	15. Request Board approve and award the contract for I
	Agenda Request Form
	Inmate Calling Solutions, LLC Contract


	 Departmental
	16. Request Board receive the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Mi
	Mid-Year 2020-2021 ICFC Report

	17. Request Board: A) adopt the Inyo County Resiliency
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Commuinty Resiliency Grant Guidelines (final)

	18. Request Board approve the following operational ch
	Agenda Request Form
	INDEPENDENCE LANDFILL PERMIT
	LONE PINE LANDFILL PERMIT

	19. Request Board ratify and approve the payment of tw
	Agenda Request Form

	20. Request Board ratify and approve the agreement bet
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County - Fairgrounds Facility Use Agreement

	21. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	22. 10:30 A.M. - Public Works - Request Board: A) waiv
	Agenda Request Form
	Change Order Update Ordinance

	23. 10:30 A.M. - County Administrator/Sheriff - Reques
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft Ordinance Amending 2.30.050

	24. 11:30 A.M. - BOARD OF EQUALIZATION - The Board of
	December 15, 2020 Board of Equalization Agenda
	May 19, 2020 BOE Minutes
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-08
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-09
	Staff Report and Stipulation Package


	 Comment
	25. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational



